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Challenges Ahead
Atlanta Public Schools is making very real progress, but we’re not done yet.

The total transformation of a k-12 urban school district has never been done before in the
United States, and experts believe it will take 12 to 15 years to achieve such a feat. At
APS, we're on our way to making history. We can look back on the past nine years with
pride. However, difficult days still lie ahead.

We have said it before, and we will say it again. It is the last lap, the last few yards or the
last leg of the competition that’s always the toughest.

Staff members of every school were challenged to meet 70 percent or more of their
targets by 2007-2008. Sixty percent of the schools met the goal. The others, while not
meeting the challenge, showed steady gains in achievement.

Our elementary schools are very strong. Student performance in reading and writing has
immproved dramatically. And our middle and high schools continue to strive for
excellence.

However, we want the majority of students to be at the level of exceeding standards. We
want students to be proficient in math and science. We want students enrolled in higher
level courses in larger numbers. We want APS to be the first choice for all parents.
Ultimately, we want to graduate at least 90 percent of our ninth-graders within four years
equipped with real choices for college and career.

There are signs on the horizon that our progress could be slowed down — or stopped in its
tracks. I'd like to touch on three challenges in particular:

« The first one is teacher and leadership quality. Just as the entire workforce is
experiencing the overwhelming impact of the baby boom generation moving into
retirement, so, too, arc we feeling the loss of qualified candidates to lead our schools
and to teach our children. Recruiting and retaining qualified professionals to meet the
needs of urban children are not easy tasks. Yet without quality leaders and effective
teachers in every classroom, we won’t meet our goals. Federal and state assistance —
through methods such as alternative certification for both teachers and principals;
induction programs; smaller class sizes; and differential, performance or incentive
pay — are essential in this endeavor. We must find ways to attract — and equally
important, to retain — the brightest of our college graduates to teach and lead in
Atlanta Public Schools.

+ The second challenge involves budget cuts and unfunded liabilities. Uncertainty
remains the watchword. The percentage of contributions from the state to education
remains low. As of June 30, 2008, state austerity cuts, totaling $52 million over the past
six years, were not restored. Almost 23 percent of our FY 08 General Fund Budget comes



from state revenue, while the majority — approximately 75 percent — is borne by local
taxpayers.

Another very real strain on our budget is our pension liability, which stems from a change
to the city pension plan 30 years ago! For at least the past decade, we’ve consistently
made the annual required payments to the pension plan. And in order to move closer
toward satisfying our liabilities, for fiscal years 2007 and 2008, we actually made
payments above our required contributions,

We can’t and won’t ignore our core funding mandates, including an aggressive academic
plan that supports our students. Money matters in the education of our students.
Maintaining academic coaches and counselors and providing supports outside the
classroom — such as nurses and social workers — call for more, not fewer, resources. We
can make a sustainable, across-the-board impact on student achievement but only if we
make the right investments.

* The third challenge we are facing at APS is the demographic shifts that are
occurring in Atlanta. These could lead to more school closings; in some cases, new
schools; in other areas, relocations; and an overall increase in mobility for students
and teachers. This, of course, negatively impacts the continuity of instruction.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

APS ended the fiscal year better than budgeted in the General Operating Fund. Using the
full accrual basis of accounting, APS has total net assets of 1,287.49 million, an increase
of approximately $130.32 million from fiscal year 2007.

Fund Accounting: The APS reports its financial activities through the use of fund
accounting. This is a system wherein transactions are reported in self-balancing sets of
accounts to reflect the results of activities, (See Notes A of the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements for a summary of significant accounting policies and a description
of fund types and account groups).

Internal Control Structure: The APS financial management officials are responsible for
mplementing and enforcing a system of internal controls to protect the assets of the APS
from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that reliable accounting data are available for the
timely preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the valuation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.



In Closing

We are pleased to present to the community our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Our community deserves the highest
quality instruction, outstanding academic programs and comprehensive student
development supports to prepare our city’s youth for the challenges of the world of
tomorrow. Equally important, our community deserves relevant financial information
and tight fiscal controls that will result in greater accountability to our taxpayers,
legislators and government entities that serve the needs of our students. We will
continue to do our very best to meet both goals. ‘

Acknowledgments: This report could not have been prepared without the dedicated and
effective help of the entire Finance Department staff. We wish to express our gratitude
and appreciation to them for their dedicated efforts, long hours and professionalism.

Respectfully submitted,

A
Charles A. Burbridge, Beverly L. Hall, Ed.D.

Chief Financial Officer Superintendent
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DEPARTMENT OF AUDITS AND ACCOUNTS

270 Washington Street, S.W., Suite 1-156
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-8400
Russell W. Hinton

STATE AUDITOR
(404) 656-2174

October 8, 2009

Honorable Sonny Perdue, Governor

Members of the General Assembly

Members of the State Board of Education
and

Superintendent and Members of the

Atlanta Independent School System

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Atlanta Independent School System (School System), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the School System's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School System's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the School System's discretely presented
component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Atlanta
Educational Telecommunications Collaborative, Inc., is based on the report of other auditors. In
addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the School System's blended component
units, Drew Charter School, Inc., Imagine Wesley International Academy, LLC, Kipp West
Atlanta Young Scholars Academy, Inc., Neighborhood Charter School Inc., Southeast Atlanta
Charter Middle School, Inc., Tech High School, Inc. and University Community Academy, Inc.
Charter Schools, which represent 0.3% and 0.4%, respectively of the assets and revenues of the
governmental activities, and 25.8% and 9.7%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the
aggregate remaining fund information. The financial statements of these component units were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for those financial statements, is solely based upon the
reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
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An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School System's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School
System, as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

As disclosed in Note R to the basic financial statements, during fiscal year 2008, the School
System completed a comprehensive reevaluation of its capital assets and retroactively reported
the changes as of July 1, 2007.

As discussed in Note T to the basic financial statements, the School System changed its method
for recognizing revenues related to imposed nonexchange transactions.

The management's discussion and analysis, as presented on pages 3 through 14, is not a required
part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We and the other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on 1t,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the School System's basic financial statements. The introductory section,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison
schedules and the statistical section, all as listed in the accompanying table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and budgetary
comparison schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinion, based on our audit and
the report of other auditors, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and accordingly we express no opinion on them.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

The discussion and analysis of the School System’s financial performance provides an overview of
the financial year ended June 30, 2008. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to examine the
School System’s financial performance as a whole, identify changes in financial position as well as
to provide basic financial statements. The basic financial statements and notes to the financial
statements should be reviewed by the readers to enhance their understanding of the School System’s
financial performance as a whole or as an entire operating entity. The basic financial statements
contain the following components:

1) District-wide financial statements including the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities which provide a broad, long-term overview of the School System’s finances

2) Fund-level financial statements provide a greater level of detail about the School System’s
major funds and focus on how well the School System has performed in the short-term in the
most significant funds

3) Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

This report also presents the highlights for the year ended June 30, 2008, and contains other
supplementary information.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Overall, net assets in fiscal year 2008 increased by 17.6% over fiscal year 2007. This is evidence of
management’s ability to maintain a balanced budget and effectively control expenses, despite
austerity reductions due to economic downturns affecting district revenues. The key financial
highlights for fiscal year 2008 as represented are:

District-wide Financial Statements:

> Total net assets for the School System increased from $1,094.94 million in fiscal year 2007
to $1,287.49 in fiscal year 2008, an increase of approximately $192.55 million or 17.6%. Net
assets increased by $180.70 million for Governmental Activities and increased by $11.85
million for Business-type Activities.

> Total revenues increased from $835.22 million in fiscal year 2007 to $877.68 million in fiscal
year 2008, an increase of approximately $42.46 million or 5.1%. Revenue for Governmental
Activities increased $41.01 million while revenue for Business-type activities increased by
$1.45 million.

> Total expenses increased $56.61 million or 8.2% from $690.75 million in fiscal year 2007 to
$747.36 million in fiscal year 2008. Expenses increased in Governmental Activities by
$55.13 million and increased by $1.48 million in Business-type Activities.






o The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Schools System’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Increases or decreases in
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or
deteriorating.

o The Statement of Activities presents information showing how net assets changed during the
fiscal year. All changes in the net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in the statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (for example, uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Included in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities for the School System are two
distinct kinds of activities:

» Governmental Activities — Most of the School System’s programs and services are reported
here including instruction, pupil services, improvement of instruction, educational media,
general administrative, school administrative, business services, maintenance and operations
of facilities, student transportation and central support.

» Business-type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Services proprietary
fund is reported as a Business-type activity.

Table I - Condensed S tatement of Net Assets (in millions of dollars)

Total School System
Govemnmental Percentage
Activities Business-type Activities Change
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and other assets $ 476.67 36645 § 089 % (8.14) § 47756 § 35831 33.3%

Net capital assets 949.48 860.50 7.41 530 956.89 865.80 10.5%

Total assets 1,426.15 1,226.95 8.30 (2.84) 143445 1,224.11 17.2%

Long-term debt outstanding 67.72 48.84 ° 67.72 48.84 38.7%

Other liabilities 78.84 79.22 040 .11 79.24 80.33 -1.4%

Total Liabilities 146.56 128.06 040 1.11 146.96 129.17 13.77%

Net assets

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 907.61 825.58 7.41 5.30 915.02 830.88 10.1%

Restricted 167.34 106.98 167.34 106.98 56.4%

Intergovemmental debt service 3.21 3.21 0.0%

Unrestricted 201.43 166.33 049 (9.25) 201.92 157.08 28.5%

Total net assets $ 127959 $ 109889 $ 790 % (395) % 1,28749 § 1,09494 17.6%

> Total assets increased by $192.6 million or 17.6%.

» Current and other assets increased by $119.25 million or 33.3%.



» Capital assets, net of depreciation for all activities increased by $91.09 million or 10.5%.
For governmental activities, the increase primarily represents increases to land, buildings
and equipment.

> Long-term debt outstanding increased by $18.88 million or 38.7%. The increase was
primarily due to capital leases.

Table 2 - Condensed Changes in Net Assets (in millions of dollars)

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total School System
Percentage
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 Change
Revenues
Programrevenues
Charges for services 070 % 207 §$ 219 % 254 § 28 § 4.61 -37.3%
Operating grants and contributions 23840 22239 20.88 19.00 259.28 241.39 7.4%
Capital grants and contributions 2.86 1.19 2.86 1.19 140.3%
General revenues
Property taxes 471.19 437.%4 471.19 43794 7.6%
SPLOST and Other Sales Taxes 115.74 121.58 115.74 121.58 -4.8%
Geants and Contributions not restricted to
specific programs 1.35 1.35 0.0%
Inves tment eamings 14.01 13.30 14.01 13.30 5.3%
Other 10.36 15.13 0.08 10.36 15.21 -31.9%
Total Revenues 854.61 813.60 23.07 21.62 877.68 835.22 5.1%
BExpenses:
Instruction 410.46 425,38 410.46 42538 -3.5%
Pupilservices 3375 23.64 3375 23.64 42.8%
Improvement of mstruction 39.13 3148 39.13 31.48 24.3%
Educational media 10.56 9.11 10.56 9.11 15.9%
General administrative 17.18 24.25 17.18 2425 -29.2%
School admmis trative 31.33 28.16 31.33 28.16 11.3%
Business services 2324 15.85 2324 15.85 46.6%
Maintenance and operation of facilities 85.86 60.21 85.86 60.21 42.6%
Student trans portation 38.18 18.84 38.18 18.84 102.7%
Food services 23.11 21,63 23.11 21.63 6.8%
Central support 29.10 2791 29.10 2791 4.3%
Community services 093 0.07 0.93 0.07 1228.6%
Other support services 215 3.03 2.15 3.03 -29.0%
Enterprise¢ operations 0.80 0.80 0.0%
Interest Expense 1.58 1,19 1.58 1.19 32.8%
Total Expenses 72425 669,12 23.11 21.63 747,36 690.75 8.2%
Extraordinary or Special Items 1.15 0.01) 1.14 -100.0%
Transfers (9.40) (16.41) 9.40 1641 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Change in Net Assets 12096 $ 12922 § 936 $ 1639 § 13032 § 14561 -10.5%










Table 3 - Net Cos t of Governmental Activities (in millions of dollars)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
Percentage Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change

Instruction 5 41046 $ 42538 -3.5% §$ 2408 § 26830 -10.2%
Pupil services 33.75 23.64 42.8% 15.44 8.69 77.7%
Improvement of instruction 39.13 3148 24.3% 22.86 15.40 48.4%
Educational media 10.56 9.11 15.9% 6.77 6.69 1.2%
General administrative 17.18 24.25 -29.2% 14.08 2091 -32.7%
School administrative 31.33 28.16 11.3% 2.7 22.10 25.3%
Business services 23.24 15.85 46.6% 14.13 14.75 4.2%
Maintenance and operation of facilities 85.86 60.21 42.6% 76.59 50.40 52.0%
Student transportation 3818 18.84 102.7% 3219 12.44 158.8%
Central support 29.10 2791 4.3% 28.44 26.92 5.6%
Community services 0.93 0.07 1228.6% 0.71 0.00 0.0%
Other support services 2.15 3.03 -29.0% 0.78 (4.34) -118.0%
Enterprise Operations 0.80 0.0% 0.22 0.0%
Interest Expense 1.58 1.19 32.8% 1.58 1.20 31.7%
Total Expenses $ 72425 §  669.12 82% § 48229 $ 44346 8.8%

The Net Cost of Governmental Activities represents the cost of operating the School System to be
covered by general revenues, including property taxes. The Net Cost of Services increase is
attributable to reduction in program revenues, primarily Quality Basic Education funds received from
the State Department of Education and increases in expenditures as discussed above.

Table 4 - Capital Assets (net of depreciation, in millions of dollars)

Total School System

Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Change
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land $ 8762 $ 2386 $ 8762 § 23.86 267.2%
Construction in Progress 228 69.09 228 69.09 -96.7%
Construction in Progress - Charter Schools 0.51 0.51 -100.0%
Construction in Progress - Education Reform 7.61 7.61 -100.0%
Buildings 752.84 673.86 752.84 673.86 11.7%
Building improvements 38.93 47.53 3893 47.53 -18.1%
Land Improvements 13.03 1033 13.03 10.33 26.1%
Furniture and Fixtures 19.30 16.59 19.30 16.59 16.3%
Equipment 13.24 651 % 741 $ 5.30 2065 11.81 74.9%
Vehicles 408 1.77 4,08 1.77 130.5%
Charter Schools 422 2.84 422 284 48.6%
Capital Leases 13.94 13.94 0.0%
Total $_ 94948 $_ 86050 $ 741 8§ 530 § 956.80 $ 86580 10.5%







Outstanding long-term debt increased, in the current fiscal year, due to capital leases. For more
detailed information on the School System’s long-term debt, see Note H in the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide detailed information regarding the resources segregated for
specific activities or objectives, not district-wide. Funds are used to track specific sources of revenue
and expenditures for particular programs.

The School System has three kinds of fund types:

Governmental funds include most of the School System’s basic services and focus on providing cash
flow available for spending. These funds include the General Fund, Capital Projects and Other
Governmental Funds of lesser magnitude. Fund accounting statements use the modified accrual
method of accounting, which measures cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted
to cash. These statements present a short-term view of the School System’s operations and services
and do not include the long-term focus presented in the new district-wide financial statements. For an
explanation of the differences see the reconciliations included with the Governmental Fund
Statements.

Proprietary funds consist of services provided by the School System for a fee and employ the full
accrual method of accounting in the same manner as the district-wide statements. The School System
has one proprietary fund, Food Service. This fund provides student meals at a cost based on the
student’s ability to pay, subsidized by federal funds and the School System.

Fiduciary funds account for assets not owned by the School System but for which the School
System is responsible for ensuring that the assets in the funds are used for their designated purposes.
These funds are not included in the district-wide financial statement because they cannot be used to
finance the School System operations. The School System has one fiduciary fund - Agency Funds
(Local School, Club and Class Funds).

The following presents a summary of the General Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Other
Governmental Funds by type of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 as compared to June
30, 2007.
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Table 6 - Revenues (in millions of dollars)

Governmental Funds

Increase Percentage

2008 2007 (Decrease) Change

Local taxes $ 47131 § 41569 § 55.62 13.4%
Sales taxes 106.56 121.57 (15.01) -12.3%
State revenues 164.26 151.92 12.34 8.1%
Federal revenues 71.65 71.66 (0.01) 0.0%
Investment eamings 14.02 13.32 0.70 53%
Facilities rental 1.53 0.91 0.62 68.1%
Tuition charges 0.11 0.27 (0.16) -59.3%
Charges forservices 0.59 207 (1.48) -71.5%
Other 15.53 13.95 1.58 11.3%
Total Revenues $ 84556 $§ 79136 § 54.20 6.8%

The following table presents a summary of the General Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Other
Governmental Funds by type of expenditure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 as compared to
June 30, 2007.

Table 7 - Expenditures (in millions of dollars)

Governmental Funds
Increase Percentage

2008 2007 (Decrease) Change
Instruction $ 37088 $ 40502 § (34.14) -8.4%
Pupil Services 33.25 23.65 9.60 40.6%
Improvement of Instruction 38.54 31.50 7.04 22.3%
Educational Media 104 9.12 1.28 14.0%
General administration 16.91 15.83 1.08 6.8%
School administration 30.87 28.21 2.66 9.4%
Business administration 2203 15.63 6.40 40.9%
Maintenance and operations 92.64 60.20 3244 53.9%
Student Transportation 43.81 17.34 2647 152.7%
Central Support 28.61 28.15 0.46 1.6%
Community Services 0.98 0.07 091 1300.0%
Enterprise Operations 08
Other 2.1 2.85 (0.75) -26.3%
Capital outlays 67.91 56.74 11.17 19.7%
Debt services 3.96 384 0.12 3.1%

Total Expenditures $ 76360 § 698.15 § 64.74 9.4%

Fluctuations in these accounts are consistent with those discussed in the Changes in Net Assets at the
District- wide level.
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Analysis of Major Funds

The School System has three major funds: the General Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the Title
I Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School System and is used to account
for all financial resources except those funds accounted for in another fund. The Capital Projects
fund is used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and to account for the bond
proceeds restricted to renovation and school construction. The Title I fund is a federal grant used to
supplement the general operating fund by ensuring students gain knowledge and skills, as well as
upgrade the entire educational program for systemic reform.

General Fund

As of June 30, 2008, total fund balance in the General Funds was $151.76 million, reserved $20.20
million, unreserved, designated for Board Action and school activities accounts $45.26 million and
$86.30 million in unreserved undesignated. As a result of operations in fiscal year 2008, the fund
balance increased by $38.17 million. For Budget to Actual comparison purposes, the operating
transfers to Charter Schools of $25.24 million were budgeted in the Instruction function.

Capital Projects Fund

As of June 30, 2008, total fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund was $192.21 million, reserved
$158.05 million for Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST), $10.04 million for advance
funded leases and undesignated unreserved $24.12 million for Capital Projects. The fund balance
increased by $57.53 million due primarily to SPLOST collections exceeding capital expenditures.

Title I Fund

As of June 30, 2008, the Title I Funding sources had a zero fund balance. Revenues equaled
expenditures.

Other Governmental Funds

As of June 30, 2008, total fund balance in Other Governmental Funds was $14.32 million. This
balance included reserved of $.12 million for capital projects, $11.49 million designated for Special
Revenue Fund and undesignated unreserved for special revenue $2.71 million.

Current Issues

Currently known facts, decisions or conditions that are expected to have a significant effect on the
financial position or results of operations are as follow:

Atlanta Independent School District continues to enjoy a strong financial position, even with the
substantial reduction in state funding over the past six fiscal years. We are fortunate that the
District is in a favorable financial position even with the impact of the global economy on our
local economy. The continued support of our schools by the public and by local community
organizations and businesses is also an integral part of our ability to educate our students.
Continuing revenue from the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax should facilitate our
ability to replace and improve existing schools and add additional classrooms. Our operating
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budget will continue to be tight, as we expect decreased funding from the State of Georgia due to
current financial conditions. Despite these challenges, we remain committed to using our
financial resources efficiently to provide an exceptional educational experience for our students.

In February 2008, the Supreme Court of Georgia issued a decision holding that educational ad
valorem taxes can only be used for educational purposes. In response, the General Assembly passed
Senate Resolution 996, a proposed amendment to the Georgia Constitution permitting Boards of
Education to agree to pledge educational ad valorem taxes for redevelopment projects and purposes,
and the voters ratified the constitutional amendment by referendum in November 2008. As a result
of Senate Resolution 996 and the referendum, House Bill 63 was passed by the General Assembly
and became effective April 22, 2009, reenacting the Redevelopment Powers Act.

However, in December 2008, a challenge to the use of retroactive educational ad valorem taxes was
filed by a taxpayer and is still pending in the Superior Court of Georgia, Fulton County. As of July
6, 2009, the Atlanta Independent School System (APS) and the Atlanta Development Authority
(ADA) reached agreement that APS is to receive all ad valorem school taxes levied through April 21,
2009 in the BeltLine and Perry Bolton tax allocation districts (TADs) totaling approximately $18.8
million. However, an order is pending in the Superior Court case that prohibits the ADA or APS
from spending or disbursing any of the school tax increment in BeltLine and Perry Bolton TADs.
The court’s disposition of motions to dismiss filed by APS, ADA and the City of Atlanta, and
motions for class certification and permanent injunction filed by plaintiff will determine whether and
when APS will receive all or none of the approximately $18.8 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The School System’s budget is prepared by the Finance Division and is a collaborative effort
between the school district and the Atlanta community. The basis for preparation utilizes a zero-
based approach because it has systematically provided a more accurate account of anticipated
spending levels for the year.

Details of the original budget and the amended budget are presented on page 21 in the Financial
Section of this report.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School System’s finances for
all those with an interest in the School System’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the School System’s Chief Financial Officer, 130 Trinity Street SW, Atlanta Georgia
30303.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investments
Restricted Investments
Taxes recetvable, net
Due from other governments
Other receivables
Internal balances
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Prepaid asset - pension
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets;
Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Due to other govemments
Deferred revenues
Current portion of long-term obligations

Total current liabilitics

Noncurrent liabilities:
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Capital projects

Intergovernmental debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Discretely presented
Component Unit

Atlanta Educational

Governmental Business-type Telecommunications
Activities Activities Total Collaborative, Inc.
3 13,470,386  $ 3,440,526 § 16910912 § 3,333,642
29,205,519 29,205,519
197,677,784 197,677,784 1,348,377
138,135,905 138,135,905
45,428,950 45,428,950
43,104,060 19,301 43,123,361
530,985 879,972 1,410,957 2,039,122
3,798,430 (3,798,430)
473,924 473,924 95,489
4,842,947 4,842,947
346,062 346,062
476,668,890 887,431 477,556,321 6,816,630
89,893,886 89,893 886
1,244,547,997 15,131,736 1,259,679,733 2,581,134
(384,966,408) (7,719,388) (392,685,796) (2,099,300
949,475.475 7,412,348 956,887 823 481,834
1,426,144,365 8,299,779 1,434,444 144 7,298,464
78,581,925 359,454 78,941,379 514,449
137,921 137,921
116,351 43,043 159,394 46,080
11,229.211 11,229,211
90,065,408 402,497 90,467,905 560,529
56,487,113 56,487,113
146 552 521 402,497 146955018 560,529
907,613,628 7,412,348 915,025,976 481,834
167,339,232 167,339,232
3,205,377 3,205,377
201.433.607 484,934 201,918,541 6,256,101
H 1,279,591,844  § 7,897,282 § 1,287,489,126  § 6,737,935

The acconpanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Functions/Programs
Frimary Government
Guyvernmental activities;
Instruction
Suppor Services:
Pupil services
Improvement of
instructional services
Educational media
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Maintenance and
operation of facilitics
Student transportation
Central support
Operations of
Non-Instructional Services
Comumunity services
Other services
Enterprise operations
Interest cxpense

Total Governmental activitics

Business-type activitics:
Food services

Tatal School System

Component Unit:
Public broadcasting station

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Program Revenues

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Capital Grams

Net (Expenscs) Revenues and Chanpes in Net Assels

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial siatemenis,

Discretely Prescnted

Component Unit
Attanta Educational

Charges for Operating Grants and Governmental Business-type Telgcommunications
Expenses Services and Contributions Contributions Aclivitics Activities Total Collaborative. Inc.
5 410,454,531 § 114350 § 167,906,705 § 1,633,629 $ (240,799,849) 5 (240,799.849)
33,754,928 18,133.132 176,608 (15,445,188) (15,445.188)
39,133,695 16,110,597 134,532 (22,868,566) {22.868,566)
10,558,856 3.745 824 44,152 (6,768,820) (6.76R.B20)
17,184,335 3,104,288 (14,080,047 (14.080,047)
31,329,750 3,498,951 132,456 (27,698,343} (27,698.343)
23,237,569 92.106.449 (14,131.120) (14.131.120)
85,855,059 9,262,487 (76,592,572) (76,592.572)
38,176,913 5337639 653,047 {32,186,227) (32,186.227)
29.102,843 660,429 (28.442.414) (28.492.414)
933,485 226,800 {706,679y (706.679)
2,149,555 L7102 66,228 (776.225) (776.225)
803,689 586,080 (217,609) 217.609)
1,575,569 (1,575,569) 1,575,569,
724.250,779 700,430 238,400,469 2.860,652 (482 289.228) 482,209,228
23,106,785 2,187,375 20,877,019 $ (42,391) 42391)
$ 747.357.564 § 2887805 § 259,277,488 § 2,600,652 (482,289,228) (42,391) (482.331.61%
$ 11,889,707 $ 12,708,226 $ R8BS
General revenues:
Taxes:
Propenty taxes levicd for peneral purposes 470,036,120 470,036,120
Property taxcs levied for debt service 1,153,847 1,153,847
Special focal option sales tax & other taxes 115,735,907 115.735.907
Grants and contributions nat restricted to spesific programs 1,347,241 1,347,241
Investment carnings 14,015,739 14,015,739
Other 10363939 10,363,939
Total General revenues 612,652,793 612,652,793
Transfers (9,400,000 9,400,000 0
Total General revenues and transfers 603,252,793 2,400,000 612,652,793
Change in net nsscty 120,963,565 9,357,609 130,321,174 BI8.519
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year, as previously stated 1.098 488 309 {3.952.966) 1.094,935.343 5919416
Prior periad adjustments (Sec Nate R} 59,739.970 2492639 62,232,609
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year. as rostaied 1,158,628,279 _ 1,460,327 1,157,167,952 3919416
Nei assets - end of year 5 1,279.59} 844 § 7897282 % 1.287.489.126 8 6.737.935




ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Investments

Restricted Investments
Taxes Receivables

Duge from other funds

Due from other govemments
Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
and accrued habilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Advanced finded leases
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Unreserved for:
Designated for Board Action
Local programs
School Activity Accounts
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund
Capital Projects
Special revenue fund

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Balance Sheet
Govemmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Nonmajor Total
Capital Projects Title 1 Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Fund Funds Funds
$ 9,468,347 $ 4,002,039 $ 13,470,386
1,515,161 $ 27,690,358 29,205,519
197,677,784 197,677,784
137,951,906 183,999 138,135,905
27,612,320 17,816,630 45,428,950
26,020,503 8,364,801 34,385,304
23,426,793 $ 14,166,286 5,510,981 43,104,060
59,668 320,026 151,291 530,985
473,924 473,924
$ 260,233,997 $ 209,799,423 $ 14,166,286 $ 18,213,111 H 502,412,817
5 64,478,696 $ 8,417,918 $ 1,921,850 $ 3,763,461 $ 78,581,925
18,342,438 12,244,436 30,586,874
137,921 137,921
25,648,398 9,173,105 34,821,503
108,469,532 17,591,023 14,166,286 3,901,382 144,128,223
15,477,500 15,477,500
1,515,161 10,039,073 11,554,234
158,048,220 117,907 158,166,127
3,205,377 3,205,377
44,664,175 11,486,616 56,150,791
598,870 598,870
86,303,382 86,303,382
24,121,107 24,121,107
2,707,206 2,707,206
151,764,465 192,208,400 0 14,311,729 358,284,594
$ 260,233,997 $ 209,799,423 $ 14,166,286 $ 18,213,111 $ 502,412 817

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
to the District-wide Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Total fund balances - governmental funds % 358,284,594

Amounts reported for governmental activites in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore are not reported as asset in governmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets s 1,334,441,883
Less Accumulated Depreciation (384,966,408) 949,475,475

Property taxes revenue that is not available to pay for current period
expenditures has been deferred in the governmental funds but is recognized
as revenue in the government-wide financial statements. : 25,532,047

Special Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) receivable will be collected, but
are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures. Therefore,
these funds are deferred in the governmental funds. 9,173,105

Pension contributions in excess of annual required contributions are reported as a prepaid assets for
governmental activities, whereas these contributions are reported as expenditures when
paid in governmental funds. 4,842,947

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds. These items consist of:

Capital leases 3 (23,511,222)

Capital leases charter schools (107,646)

Intergovernmental agreements (21,385,800)

Education reform success (10,115,000)

Notes payable (1,512,075)

Compensated absences (5,675,108)

Waorkers's compensation (5,409.473) (67,716,324)
Total net assets - governmental activities 3 1,279,591,844

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmenta) Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Local taxes
Sales tax income
State revenues
Federal revenues
Investment income
Facility rental fees
Tuition charges
Charges for services
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cument:
Instruction
Support Services:
Pupil services
Improvement of instructional services
Educatignal media
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Maintenance and operation of facilities
Student transponation
Central support
Community services
Enterprise Qperations
Other Qperations - Non-instructional Services
Capital Qutlays
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from debt - notes
Proceeds from sale of assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance - beginning of year, as previously stated
Prior period adjustments (See Note R)

Fund Balance - beginning of year, as restated

FUND BALANCE. END OF YEAR

Capital Projects TitleI Nonmajor Total Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds Goverl | Funds Funds

471,313,094 $ 471,313,094
8,839,815 § 97,722,967 106,562,802
154,892,058 2,207,605 7,160,040 164,259,703
1,347,241 $ 47,929,351 22,374,956 71,651,548
9,648,101 4,367,638 14,015,739
1,532,799 1,532,799
114,350 114,350
586,080 586,080
5.471,971 321,554 9,734,726 15,528,251
653,745,529 104,619,764 47929351 39,269,722 845,564,366
308,763,190 291,017 26,359,893 35,469,818 370,883.918
16,194,602 11,862,983 5,190,524 33,248,109
23,834,576 5,172,206 9,535,103 38,54] 885
9,571,874 924 826,764 10,369,562
10,330,390 1,959,242 4,616,574 16,906,206
26,203,879 171,588 1,493.119 30,408,586
20,837,859 80,500 269,726 844,229 22032314
89,884,045 53,104 2,700,331 92,637,480
42,122,297 733,671 955,699 431,811,667
28,143,483 223,300 242,254 28,609,037
18,214 965,070 983,284
801,501 801,501
921,013 1175818 2,096,831
8,257,558 56,664,016 2,990,212 67,911,786
1,831,121 556,469 2,387.590
1,062,356 513,213 1,575,569
591,777,958 57,088,637 47,929,351 66,899,379 763,695,325
61,967,571 47,531,127 ] (27,629,657) 81,869,041
10,000,000 10,000,000 70,443 20,070,443
1,265,274 1,265,274

909,104 909,104
25,307,215 25.307.215
(34,707,215) (34,707.215)
(23,798,111) 10,000,000 26,642,932 12,844,821
38,169,460 57,531,127 [ {986,725) 94,713,862
112,289,829 134.677.273 0 14,604,481 261,571,583
1,305,176 693,973 1,999,149
113,595,005 134,677,273 0 15,298,454 263,570,732
151,764,465 § 192,208,400 § 0 14,311,729 § 358,284,594

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances To the District-wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds 94,713,862
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of

those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capital outlays of $58,394,143 exceeded depreciation of $37,089,443 in the current

period. 21,304,700

Disposals of capital assets are not refleted in the governmental funds, but the loss on the disposal of these
assets at their net book value is reflected and the statement of activities. (435,719)

Property tax revenue that is not available to pay for current period expenditures has been deferred in the
governmental funds but is recognized as revenue in the district-wide financial statement. The change in
deferred revenue from prior year to the current year is recorded as revenue in the statement of activities. (123,127)

Special local option sales tax revenue that is not available to pay for current period expenditures has been

deferred in the governmental funds but is recognized as revenue in the district-wide financial statement. The

change in deferred revenue from prior year to the current year is recorded as revenue in the statement of

activities. 9,173,105

Pension contributions in excess of annual required contributions are reported as a prepaid assets for

governmental activities, whereas these contributions are reported as expenditures when paid in governmental

funds. The change in the prepaid asset from the prior year to the current year is recorded as expenditures in

the governmental funds for the current period. 15,159,757

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current finaneial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The issuance of long-term debt (e.g.,
leases, notes) provides current financial resources to government funds. Repayment of debt (e.g., Jeases,
notes) is an expenditure in the governmental funds but the repayments reduce long-term liabilities in the
statement of activities. The following items are the net effect of the differences in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

Capital Leases (18,518,344)
Notes Payables (1,406,658)
Intergovernmental Agreement - Bonds Payable 726,875
Compensated absences 315,842
Workers' compensation 53272
(18,829,013)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 120,963,565

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

REVENUES
Local taxes
Sales tax income
State revenues
Federal revenues
Investment income
Facility rental fees
Tuition charges
Charges for services
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
Support Services:
Pupil services
Improvement of instructional services
Educational media
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Maintenance and operation of facilities
Student transportation
Central support
Community services
Enterprise Operations
Other Operations - Non-instructional Services
Capital Outlays
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from sale of assets
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance - beginning of year, as previously stated
Prior period adjustments (See Note R)

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

(1) Original and Final budget amounts do not include budgeted revenues or expenditures of various principal accounts.

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budpet

Over
Original (1)(2) Final (1)(2) Actual (2) (Under)

464,605,886 $ 464,605,886 § 471,313,094 $ 6,707,208
8,839,835 8.839.835

141,800,000 141,800,000 154,892 058 13,092,058
2,400,000 2,400,000 1,347,241 (1,052,759)
5,625,000 5,625,000 9,648,101 4,023,101
1,532,799 1,532,799

25,000 25,000 114,350 89,350
586,080 586,080

5,471,971 5.471,971

614,455,886 614,455,886 653,745,529 39,289,643
422,771,859 405,159,767 308,763,190 (96,396,577}
13,494,406 14,448,853 16,194,602 1,745,749
3,425,075 3,865,864 23,834,576 19,968,712
11,500,978 11,742,236 9,571,874 (2,170,362)
10,727,885 11,224,063 10,330,390 (893,673)
34,365,754 34,486,564 29,203,879 (5,282,685)
10,930,029 12,091,959 20,837,859 8.745,900
67,884,726 68,746,849 89,884,045 21,137,196
13,613,482 13,180,427 42,122,297 28941870
31,482,292 36,102,365 28,143,483 (7,958 882)
16,400 21433 18,214 (3,219)
801,501 801,501
25,112,455 921,013 (24,191,442)

11,673 8,257,558 8,245,885

1,831,121 1,831,121

1,062,356 1,062,356
620,212,886 636,194,508 591,777,958 (44,416,550)
(5,757,000) (21,738,622) 61,967,571 83,706,193
10,000,000 (10,000,000}

50,000 50,000 909,104 859,104
(9,400,000} (34,707,215) (25,307,215)
50,000 (9,350,000) (23,798,111 (34,448 111)
(5,707,000} (31,088,622) 38,169,460 49.258,082
112,289,829 112,289,829 112,289,829 0
1,305,176 1,305,176 1,305,176 0

107,388,005 $ 82,506,383 § 151,764,465 §$ 49,258,082

(2) Property taxes and State fund revenues related to Charter Schools are budgeted in the Instruction Function, whereas, these amounts

are shown as Other Uses (Transfers out) in the actual column,

The accompanying schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances budget and actual is presented on the modified

accrual basis of accounting which is the basis of acccounting used in the presentation of the fund financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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REVENUES
Federal funds

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instruction

Support Services:
Pupil services
Improvement of instructional services
Educational media services
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Student transportation
Central support

Other Operations - Non-instructional Services

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Fund Balance - beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

$

SPECTAL REVENUE FUND - TITLE |
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
49252279 §$ 51,904,198 § 47,929,351 (3,974,847)
45,720,745 35,532,210 26,359,893 (9,172,317)
6,480,668 11,862,983 5,382,315
1,105,810 4471911 5,172,206 700,295
924 924
1,733,764 1,803,132 1,959,242 156,110
379,907 171,588 (208,319)
269,726 269,726
690,960 753,040 733,671 (19.369)
223,300 223,300
1,000 2,483,330 1,175,818 (1,307,512)
49,252,279 51,904,198 47,929,351 (3,974,847)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 1) 0 $ 0 0

The accompanying schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances budget and actual is presented on the modified

accrual basis of accounting which is the basis of acccounting used in the presentation of the fund financial statements.

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the basic financial statements,
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund - Food Services
June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $
Due from other governments
Other receivables
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Depreciable capital assets
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets $
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $

Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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3,440,526
19,301
879,972

346,062

4,685,861

15,131,736

(7,719,388)
7,412,348

12,098,209

359,454
3,798,430

43,043

4,200,927

7,412,348

484,934
7,897,282

12,098,209



ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund - Food Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Operating revenue:
Sales $ 2,187,375

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs 3,903,734
Professional and contract services 14,016,376
Supplies and materials 2,382,248
Depreciation 903,875
Other operating costs 1,066,561
Total operating expenses 22,272,794
Operating loss (20,085,419)
Nonoperating revenues/expenses:
Grants - Child Nutrition Program 20,877,019
Loss on disposal of capital assets (833,991)
Total nonoperating activities 20,043,028
Income (loss) before transfers (42,391)
Transfers in 9,400,000
Changes in net assets 9,357,609
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year, as previously stated (3,952,966)
Prior period adjustments (See Note R) 2,492,639
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year, as restated (1,460,327)
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 7,897,282

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund - Food Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash received from user charges
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash used for operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Non-operating grants received
Reimbursment of advances from other funds
Transfers In

Net cash used for non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Commmodities used
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Increase in receivables
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in liabilities

Net cash used for operating activities

Noncash non-capital financing activities
USDA donated food commodity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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$

2,121,472
(3,915,684)
(17,974,430)

(19,768,642)

19,459,461
(16,075,907)
9,400,000

12,783,554

(646,162)
(7,631,250)
11,071,776

3,440,526

(20,085,419)
903,875
2,136,258

(881,832)

93,477
(1,935,001)

(19,768.642)

2,136,258



ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2008
Agency Fund
Local School,
Club and Class
Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 828,328
Liabilities:
Due to local schools and student groups $ §28,328

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Atlanta Independent School System

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2008

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the School System have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to government
units. The more significant of the School System’s accounting policies are summarized below.

1.

Reporting Entity

The Atlanta Independent School System (School System) was established by the Georgia State
Legislature and is composed of nine publicly elected members serving four year terms. The
school system has the authority to approve its own budget and to provide for the levy of taxes to
cover the cost of operations and maintenance and to cover debt service payments. Additionally,
the School System has decision making authority, the power to approve selection of management
personnel, the ability to significantly influence operations, and primary accountability for fiscal
matters. Accordingly, the School System is a primary government and consists of all the
organizations that compose its legal entity.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
School System and its component units, entities for which the School System is considered to be
financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the School System’s operations. Therefore, data from these units are combined
with data of the School System. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a
separate column in the District-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate
from the government.

Blended Component Units. Education Reform Success, Inc., (ERS) (a non-profit corporation)
was established by the School System for the purpose of providing financing for some of the
School System’s buildings and equipment. The schools system has a voting majority on the
Board. ERS has issued certificates of participation (COPS) for the acquisition and construction
of facilities and equipment. The COPS are repayable solely from payments made by the School
System to ERS under a lease agreement for the related facilities and equipment. Accordingly, the
COPS and the related capital assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Charter Schools. Included within the School System are seven charter schools. Charter schools
were created by the Georgia General Assembly to increase student achievement through
academic and organizational innovation by encouraging local school systems to utilize the
flexibility of a performance based contract called a “charter.”
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Pursuant to Georgia Statute 20-2-2062, charter schools are considered public schools and are
entitled to receive equal treatment as a public school. The source of funding for public schools
includes the State of Georgia Quality Basis Education allotment as prescribed in Georgia Statute
20-2-2068-1. Other funds are received from local grants, tax revenue collections and donations.
Charter schools with the School System’s boundaries receive allocations from the stated sources

of revenue.

Because the major portion of the funding for the charter schools comes through the School
System, the School System is considered financially accountable for the charter schools. The
financial activities of the charter schools have been blended with those of the School System. A
listing of the charter schools follows:

Drew Charter School, Inc. Imagine Wesley International Academy, LLC
301 East Lake Blvd. 1049 Custer Avenue
Atlanta, Georgia 30317 Atlanta, GA 30316

KIPP West Atlanta Young Scholars Neighborhood Charter
Academy, Inc. School, Inc.

80 Joseph Lowery Boulevard 688 Grant Street SE
Atlanta, GA 30314 Atlanta, Georgia 30315
Southeast Atlanta Charter Tech High School, Inc.
Middle School, Inc. 1043 Memorial Drive, SE
820 Essie Avenue SE. Atlanta, Georgia 30316
Atlanta, Georgia 30316

University Community
Academy, Inc.

Tiger Flowers Dr. NW
Atlanta, Georgia 30314

Separate financial statements are available for each charter school, in existence as of June 30,
2008, and may be obtained from each by writing to the addresses listed above.

Discretely Presented Component Unit. Atlanta Educational Telecommunications Collaborative,
Inc. (AETC) is a non-profit corporation which the School System contracted with for the purpose
of operating the Corporation for Public Broadcasting radio and television broadcast station
licenses owned by the School System. The School System owns substantially all assets used to
operate the stations and is providing support for capital improvements. Separate financial
statements of AETC are available from the School System. Financial Statements for AETC may
also be obtained at www.pba.org/about/pba/aetc or by request at 740 Bismark Road, Atlanta, GA
30324.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
2. District-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The District-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the School
System and its component units. The effects of inter-fund activity have been netted in these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the School System is reported
separately from the legally separate discretely presented component unit for which the School
System is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
applicants who use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the District-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the governmental fund
financial statements.

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The District-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the School System considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Property taxes, sales taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the School System.

The School System reports the following major government funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the School System’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial transactions of the School System, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Funds - These funds account for resources which are used exclusively for
acquiring school sites, constructing and equipping new school facilities, and renovating
existing facilities. The major revenue sources are proceeds from debt proceeds, bond sales,
property tax revenue, special purpose local option sales tax revenues and amounts received
from the State of Georgia.

Title I Fund — The Fund was established to account for federal grant funds passed through the
Georgia Department of Education to provide remedial education in the areas of reading and
math and to provide a special education program for children who are physically
handicapped.

The School System reports the following major proprietary fund:

Food Service Funds - The primary purpose of food service funds is to account for activities
of the School System’s school breakfast and lunch programs, which are funded primarily by
the United States Department of Agriculture, passed through the Georgia Department of
Education.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the District-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The School System has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

4.

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for the enterprises fund includes the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds employ
the economic resources measurement focus and are accounted for on the accrual basis.

The AETC component unit is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus
and uses the accrual basis of accounting. This means that all assets and liabilities associated with
the component unit’s activities are included on the balance sheet. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

The Fiduciary fund accounts for assets held by the School System in a trustee capacity or as an
agent on behalf of others. The School System reports the following fiduciary fund:

Agency Fund - This fund is used to account for local school student club and class accounts.
It is custodial in nature and does not involve measurement of results of operations.

The fiduciary fund is excluded from the District-wide financial statements.
Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

a. Cash Equivalents

The School System considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Georgia Laws, OCGA §45-8-14, authorizes the
School District to deposit its funds in one or more solvent banks or insured Federal savings
and loan associations.

b. Investments

Investments made by the School System in nonparticipating interest-earning contracts (such
as certificates of deposit) and repurchase agreements are reported at cost. Participating
interest-earning contracts and money market investments with a maturity at purchase of one
year or less are reported at amortized cost. Both participating interest-earning contracts and
money market investments with a maturity at purchase greater than one year and equity
investments are reported at fair value. The Official Code of Georgia Annotated Section 36-
83-4 authorizes the School District to invest its funds. In selecting among options for
investment or among institutional bids for deposits, the highest rate of return shall be the
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

objective, given equivalent conditions of safety and liquidity. Funds may be invested in the
following:

1) Obligations issued by the State of Georgia or by other states
2) Obligations issued by the United States government

3) Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States government or a United
States government agency

4) Obligations of any corporation of the United States government
5) Prime banker’s acceptances

6) The Local Government Investment Pool administered by the State of Georgia, Office
of Treasury and Fiscal Services

7) Repurchase agreements
8) Obligations of other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia
c. Receivables
Receivables consist of amounts due from property and sales taxes, grant reimbursements due
on Federal, State or other grants for expenditures made but not reimbursed and other
receivables disclosed from information available. Receivables are recorded when either the

asset or revenue recognition criteria has been met.

d. Inventories and Prepaids

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method of accounting. The cost of
prepaids are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed (purchase
method). The costs of food services fund inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed (consumption method).

e. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased, including capital outlay costs, are recorded as expenditures in the
fund financial statements at the time of purchase (including ancillary charges). On the
District-wide financial statements, all purchased capital assets are valued at cost where
historical records are available and at estimated historical cost based on appraisals or deflated
current replacement cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are recorded
at their estimated market value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
included in the cost of capital assets. The School System does not capitalize book collections
or works of art.

32



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

At June 30, 2008, the School System had buildings with a net value of $4,822,447
($9,165,414 cost less $4,342,967 accumulated depreciation) that were not in use. The School
System does not consider these assets impaired. During the current period, no events or
changes in circumstances affecting a capital asset that may indicate impairment were known
to the School District.

Capitalization thresholds and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the District-
wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:

Capitalization Estimated

Policy Useful Life
Land All N/A
Land Improvements $20,000 10 to 20 years
Buildings $20,000 20 to 50 years
Building Improvements $20,000 10 to 30 years
Furniture and Fixtures $ 5,000 3 to 15 years
Vehicles $ 5,000 5 to 8 years
Equipment $ 5,000 3 to 15 years

Capital assets of the discretely presented component unit are recorded at cost. Capital assets
donated to proprietary fund type operation are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method with a half year
convention over the estimated useful life of the assets.

f. Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’
rights to receive salary related compensation are attributable to services already rendered
and it is probable that the School System will compensate the employees for the benefits
through paid time off or some other means. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation
leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources
are reported as long-term obligations in the District-wide financial statements.

g. Long-term Obligations

In the governmental fund financial statements, principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences, and contractually required pension
contributions are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Long-term
debt and other long-term liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are not
recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements until due but are reported in the
District-wide statements and propriety funds as long-term debt.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued
A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

h. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriations or are legally restricted by outside parties
for use for a specific purpose. The following reservations have been established by the
School System:

Reserved for Encumbrances - resources of the School System which have been encumbered
or appropriated for purchase orders or contractual obligations.

Reserved for Advance Funded Leases - resources received from cash advancements on leases
for the purchase of various capital assets.

Reserved for Capital Projects - resources received from Special Purpose Local Option Sales
Tax which have been formally set aside for capital projects.

Reserved for Debt Service Fund - resources accumulated for future payments of principal and
interest on long-term general obligations.

Designations of Fund Balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to
change. The School System has made authorized allocation of fund balances for various
capital, technology and operational needs.

i. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The School System applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

j. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses including the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual amounts could
differ from those estimates.

The School System recognizes the liabilities for estimated losses to be incurred from pending
worker compensation claims and for worker compensation claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR). IBNR claims are estimates of claims that are incurred through the end of the fiscal
year but have not yet been reported. These liabilities are based on actuarial valuations.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

B. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Atlanta Independent School District employs zero-based budgeting for budget preparation. The zero-
based budgeting process provides for the identification and prioritization of school system activities
and resources starting from zero and accumulating to the targeted funding level. Each activity is
linked to the goal, objectives and mission of the District and ranked as to its importance. As the
proposed budget moves through each level of the organization, program activities and goals are
aggregated further and ranked again. The final budget produced and presented is one which includes
all program activities ranked in order of importance in reaching the District’s mission.

The School System follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Budget requests are completed in January.

2. Proposed budgets are consolidated and reviewed by the CFQO, and submitted to the
Superintendent of Schools and Budget Commission for additional review prior to approval
by the Atlanta Board of Education.

3. Public hearings on the proposed budget are held in March through May.

4. The legally adopted annual budget is adopted by the Board in May for the General and Special
Revenue Funds.

5.  The administrative level of budgetary control as the budget is adopted is at the program level
within funds where budgets are adopted. The School System must approve revisions that alter
the reallocation or revisions between salary and non salary expenditures. Transfer of budgeted
amounts between object categories within program functions requires the approval of the
budget center manager.

6.  Revenues and expenditures of the Capital Projects Funds are budgeted on a project basis and
are, therefore, excluded from presentation in the financial statements.

C. Fund Deficit/Excess Expenditures over Appropriations of Individual Funds

Food Services Fund

The Food Services Fund had unrestricted net assets of $484,934 at fiscal year end 2008. The
management of the School System has successfully eliminated the prior year deficit by transferring
$9,400,000 from the general fund during fiscal year 2008.

35



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

D. Deposits and Investments Risks

Collateralization of Deposits

Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 45-8-12 provides that there shall not be on
deposit at any time in any depository for a time longer than ten days a sum of money which has not
been secured by surety bond, by guarantee of insurance, or by collateral. The aggregate of the face
value of such surety bond and the market value of securities pledged shall be equal to not less than
110 percent of the public funds being secured after the deduction of the amount of deposit insurance.
If a depository elects the pooled method (OCGA 45-8-13.1) the aggregate of the market value of the
securities pledged to secure a pool of public funds shall be not less than 110 percent of the daily pool
balance.

Acceptable security for deposits consists of any one of or any combination of the following:

(1) Surety bond signed by a surety company duly qualified and authorized to transact business
within the State of Georgia,

(2) Insurance on accounts provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,

(3) Bonds, bills, notes, certificates of indebtedness or other direct obligations of the United
States or of the State of Georgia,

(4) Bonds, bills, notes, certificates of indebtedness or other obligations of the counties or
municipalities of the State of Georgia,

(5) Bonds of any public authority created by the laws of the State of Georgia, providing that the
statute that created the authority authorized the use of the bonds for this purpose,

(6) Industrial revenue bonds and bonds of development authorities created by the laws of the
State of Georgia, and

(7) Bonds, bills, notes, certificates of indebtedness, notes, or other obligations of a subsidiary
corporation of the United States government, which are fully guaranteed by the United
States government both as to principal and interest or debt obligations issued by or
securities guaranteed by the Federal Land Bank, the Federal Home Loan Bank, the Federal
Intermediate Credit Bank, the Central Bank for Cooperatives, the Farm Credit Banks, the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association, and the Federal National Mortgage Association.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

D. Deposits and Investments Risks, continued

CATEGORIZATION OF DEPOSITS
At June 30, 2008, the bank balances were $57,576,256. The amounts of the total uninsured bank
balance are classified into three categories of custodial credit risk:

Category 1 -  Uncollateralized,

Category 2 - Cash collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or

Category 3 - Cash collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the School District’s name.

The School District’s uninsured deposits are classified by custodial credit risk category at June 30,
2008, as follows:

Custodial Credit
Risk Category Bank Balance
1 $ 0
2 0
3 57,106,864
Total $ 57,106,864

At June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of deposits for AETC, the discretely presented component
unit, was $3,900,455 (includes CD balances) and the bank balance was $ 3,994,609. Of the bank
balance, $ 3,794,609 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

CATEGORIZATION OF INVESTMENTS
The School District’s investments as of June 30, 2008, are presented below. All investments are
presented by investment type and debt securities are presented by maturity.

Fair Investment Maturity
Investment Type Value Less than 1 Year
Debt Securities
U.S. Agencies
Implicitly Guaranteed $ 206,636,102 $ 206,636,102
Repurchase Agreements 41,000,000 41,000,000
§ 247,636,102 $ 247,636,102
Other Investments
U.S. Treasury Money Market
Mutual Funds (Open End) 78,891,240
Total Investments $ 326,527,342
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

D. Deposits and Investments Risks, continued

The investments for AETC, the discretely presented component unit, as of June 30, 2008, are
presented below. All investments are presented by investment type and debt securities are
presented by maturity.

Investment Maturity
Fair Less than 1-5 More than
Investment Type Value 1 Year Years 5 Years
Debt Securities
U.S. Agencies $ 50951 § 20,426 § 30,525
Corporate Bonds 104,215 81,435 §$ 22,780
$ 155,166 $ 20426 $ 111,960 $ 22,780

Other Investments
Equity and Equity Funds 626,398

Total Investments $ 781,564

AETC, the discretely presented component unit, does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investment will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The School District does not have a formal policy for managing
interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter-
party to a transaction, the School District will not be able to recover the value of the investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The School District does not
have a formal policy for managing custodial credit risk.

AETC, the discretely presented component unit, maintains equity securities in investment
account at a financial institution, which are protected by Securities Investor Protection
Corporation (“SIPC”) up to $500,000 in the aggregate, from which $100,000 is used to protect
cash.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

D. Deposits and Investments Risks, continued

Credit Quality Risk

Credit quality risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. The School District’s procedures for managing credit quality risk related to
certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements states such investments will only be purchased
through banks having at least an AA rating, except for community banks. The School District
does not have a formal policy for other investments not mentioned in previous sentence.

The investments subject to credit quality risk are reflected below:

Fair Quality Ratings
Related Debt Instruments Value Al Unrated
Debt Securities
U.S. Agencies
Implicitly Guaranteed $ 206,636,102 $ 206,636,102
Repurchase Agreements 41,000,000 $ 41,000,000
Totals by Quality Ratings 247,636,102 41,000,00 206,636,102

AETC, the discretely presented component unit, has no formal policy regarding credit risk for its
investments including certificates of deposits.

The investments subject to credit quality risk are reflected below for AETC:

Fair Quality Ratings
Related Debt Instruments Value AAA AA A
Debt Securities
U.S. Agencies 5 50,951 § 50,951
Corporate Bonds 104,215 26,192 % 55,243 % 22,780
Totals by Quality Ratings 155,166 77,143 55,243 22,780

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The School System does have a policy concerning the composition
of its investment portfolio and is in compliance with its investment policy.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

D. Deposits and Investments Risks, continued

The investment procedure establishes the following eligible investments individually are not to
exceed the following composition in the portfolios of the General and SPLOST funds:

U.S. Treasury Bills 100%
Federal Agencies (No more than 40% per issuer) 65%
Repurchase Agreements 30%
State of Georgia - Georgia Fund 1 25%
Bank Special Purpose Money Market Funds 25%
Certificates of Deposit 10%

Investments in any one issuer that represents 5% or more of the total investments were as follows
as of June 30, 2008:

% of Total

Issuer Investment Type Investments
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 23.61%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal Agency Securities 18.61%
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities 16.12%
Merrill Lynch Repurchase Agreement Repurchase Agreement 12.56%
Ridgeworth Fund - U.S. Money Market Bank Special Purpose Money Market Funds 24.16%

AETC, the discretely presented component unit, does have a policy concerning the composition

of its investment portfolio.

Investments in any one issuer that represents 5% of more of the total investments were as

follows:

Issuer

Corporate Bonds

Equity Mutual Funds
International Mutual Funds
Mid Cap Mutual Funds

Foreign Currency Risk

% of Total
Investment Type Investments
Corporate Bonds 8%
Equity 23%
International 13%
Mid Cap 11%

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates could adversely affect the fair
value of investments or deposits. APS does not hold any foreign investments as they are

prohibited by law in Georgia.

As of year-end, AETC, the discretely presented component unit, had investments in foreign
equity mutual funds totaling $168,971. AETC does not currently have a foreign currency risk

policy.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

E. Due from Other Governments

Due from other governments consists of grant reimbursements due primarily from the Georgia
Department of Education for expenditures made, but not yet reimbursed and amounts due from City
of Atlanta for bonds issued and unspent tax collections.

F. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied in early July based on property values assessed as of January 1, on all real
and personal property located within the City of Atlanta. Property taxes are due on or before August
15, at which time they become delinquent and penalties and interest may be assessed and liens may
be attached to property. An allowance has been established for estimated amounts that will not be
collected. The School System considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days
of the end of the current fiscal period.

Property Tax Net Property
Receivable Allowance Tax Reccivable
General Fund $ 35,222,256 § 7,609,936 § 27,612,320

G. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in the Capital Assets during the fiscal year:
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G. Capital Assets, continued

Primary Government

Gowernmental activities:

Land

Construction in progress

Construction in progress
Education Reform

Success

Construction in progress

Charter School

Total non-depreciable
assets

Buildings

Building improvements
Land improvements
Equipment

Furniture and Fixures
Vehicles

Leases

Charter Schools

Total depreciable

assets
Totals at historical cost
Less: Accumulated

Depreciation
Buildings

Building improvements

Land improvements
Equipment
Furmniture

Vehicles

Leases

Charter Schools

Total accumulated

depreciation

Govemmental activities

capital assets, net
Business-type activities:
Equipment

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation

Equipment

Business-type activities
capital assets, net

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

Beginning Restatement
Balance of Beginning
as Beginning Balance
Originally Balance as Ending
Stated {Note R) Restated Additions Retirements Trans fers Balance
$ 23,856,323 $ 51,504,708 $ 75,361,031  § 12,257,660 $ 87,618,691
69,093,985 (36,467,341) 32,626,644 33,329,905 $  (63,681,354) 2,275,195
7,609,587 7,609,587 2,223,201 (9,832,788)
509,043 509,043 (509,043)
101,068,938 15,037,367 116,106,305 47,810,766 (74,023,185) 89,893,886
873,042,142 8,390,454 881,432,596 1,545,001 § (299,463) 69,010,989 951,689,123
73,428,610 (18,549,870) 54,878,740 4,503,153 59,381,893
12,319,900 9,682,306 22,002,206 22,002,206
93,302,636 31,608,710 124,911,346 2,296,320 (3,590.213) 123,617,453
31,237,244 7.474,571 38,711,815 2,530 38,714,345
20,810,327 7,632,957 28,443,284 118,153 (4,100,255) 24,461,182
13,785,648 13,785,648 5,051,348 18,836,996
4,050,390 16,000 4,066,390 1,570,025 (300,659) 509,043 5,844,799
1,108,191,249 60,040,776 1,168,232,025 10,583,377 (8,290,590) 74,023,185 1,244,547,997
1,209,260,187 75,078,143 1,284,338,330 58,394,143 (8,290,590) 0 1,334,441,883
199,170,060 (17,791,711) 181,378,349 17,579,122 (110,956) 198,846,515
25,887,939 (9,434,555) 16,453,384 4,001,580 20,454,964
1,995,900 5,790,037 7,785,937 1,190,635 8,976,572
86,797,373 19,428,137 106,225,510 7,576,273 (3,425,990) 110,375,793
14,650,536 889,089 15,539,625 3.871,168 19,410,793
19,044,910 4,635,112 23,680,022 804,841 (4,100,255) 20,384,608
3,457,274 3,457,274 1,438,499 4,895,773
1,211,132 603 1,211,735 627,325 (217,670) 1,621,390
348,757,850 6,973,986 355,731,836 37,089,443 (7.854.871) 384,966,408
$ 860,502,337 $ 68,104,157 $ 928,606,494 $ 21,304,700 § (435,719) $ 0 $ 949,475 475
$ 10,890,580 $ 6,073,136 $ 16,963,716 §$ 646,162 § (2,478,142) % 0% 15,131,736
5,589,839 2,869,825 8,459,664 903,875 (1,644,151} 7,719,388
$ 5,300,741 § 3,203,311 § 8,504,052 $ (257,713) $ (833,991} $ 0 s 7,412,348
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued
G. Capital Assets, continued

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction $ 36,058,628
General administrative 20,354
Business administration 10,890
Maintenance and operation of facilities 38,377
Student transportation 876,981
Central support 65,617
Other services 18,596

Total $ 37,089,443

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Food services $ 903,875

Component Unit

Fixed asset balances of AETC (component unit) as of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Equipment and furniture $ 2,268,066
Equipment purchased under capital leases 186,416
Leasehold improvements 126,652
Totals at historical cost 2,581,134
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,099.300)
Net Fixed Assets $ 481,834

Depreciation expense of AETC for the year ended June 30, 2008 was $187,253.

As part of the operation agreement with the School System for the (AETC) radio and television
stations, all real and personal property comprising the physical facilities of the stations remains the
property of the School System. The School System is responsible for routine maintenance and
insurance of the facilities., AETC, in turn, leases the facilities from the School System for $10.00 a

year.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

H. Long-term Debt

Capital Leases

The School System has entered into various equipment and vehicle lease agreements. These lease
agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of inception.

During the current period, the School System entered into lease agreements for the purchase of
various capital assets in the amount of $20,000,000. These leases were advanced funded. At June 30,
2008, a portion of these advanced funded leases remained unspent and are reported as restricted cash
and cash equivalents on the statement of net assets in the amount of $11,554,234.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Asset:
Machinery and Equipment $ 13,689,655
Vehicles and Buses 5,147,341
Less: Accumulated depreciation (4,895,773)
Total $ 13,941,223

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases and their total
present value:

Governmental Charter
Activities Schools
Fiscal Year Ended
2009 $ 6,239,936 $ 58,621
2010 4,831,103 57,136
2011 4,831,118 10,507
2012 2,129,417
2013 2,129,417
2014 - 2018 6,711,092
Total minimum lease payments 26,872,083 126,264
Less: Amount representing interest (3,360,861) (18,618)

Present value of minimum lease payments § 23,511,222 § 107,646
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

H. Long-term Debt, continued
Intergovernmental Agreement

Over the years, the City of Atlanta has issued various annual general obligation bonds, and general
obligation refunding bonds on behalf of the School System. The debt service for the bonds has been
funded through the School System’s bonded debt portion of the annual tax levy. The bonded debt
portion of property taxes collected by the City on behalf of the School System is retained by the City
and used to pay the annual debt service on the outstanding bonds. The debt service payments are
calculated using assumptions and estimates based on information available. As of June 30, 2008,
$3,205,377 is available and held by the City.

General Obligation Bonds currently outstanding at the City of Atlanta on behalf of the School
System are as follows:

Purpose Interest Rate Amount
Governmental activities 3-5% $21,385,800

In prior fiscal years, the City of Atlanta on behalf of the School System defeased certain bonds
by placing funds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not
included in the School System's basic financial statements. At June 30, 2008, $181,310,000 of
bonds are outstanding and are considered defeased.

Changes in long-term obligations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, were as follows:

Beginning  Restatement

Balance of Beginning
as Beginning Balance
Originally Balance as Ending Due Within
Stated (Note R) Restated Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Long-term debt
Capital leases § 5027683 $ 5027683 $ 20,000,000 $ (1,516461) $ 23,511,222 § 5,353,713
Capital leases - Charter Schools 26314 $ 46,527 72,841 70,443 (35,638) 107,646 46,050
Intergovernmental agreement -
City of Atlanta 22,112,675 22,112,675 (726,875) 21,385,800 896,750
Education Reform Success 10,115,000 10,115,000 10,115,000 550,000
Total Long-term debt 37,281,672 46,527 37,328,199 20,070,443 (2,278974) 55,119,668 6,846,513
Other Long-term liabilities
Notes payabk - Charter Schools 105,417 105,417 1,515274 (108,616) 1,512,075 21,782
Compensated absences 5,990,950 5,990,950 2206291  (2,522,133) 5,675,108 2,444,721
Workers compensation 5,462,745 5,462,745 2,543,877 (2,597,149) 5,409473 1,916,195
Total other long-term liabilities 11,559,112 11,559,112 6205442 (5,227,898) 12,596,656 4,382,698

Total long-term obligations $ 48,840,784 3 46,527 $ 48,887,311 $ 26,335,885 $ (7,506,872) § 67,716324 § 11,229211
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

H. Long-term Debt, continued

At June 30, 2008, payments due by fiscal year which includes principal and interest for these items
are as follows:

Intergovernmental Agreements Education Reform Success, Inc.
Capital Leases City of Atlanta Certificates of Participation
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Fiscal Year Ended
2009 $ 5353713 % 886,223 $ 896,750 % 992,035 % 550,000 $ 417,699
2010 4,158,680 672,423 1,026,875 955,176 570,000 394,987
2011 4,316,541 514,577 1,022,875 915,454 595,000 371,449
2012 1,778,587 350,830 1,040,875 875,446 620,000 346,878
2013 1,841,274 288,143 1,086,875 832,790 645,000 321,275
2014 - 2018 6,062,427 648,665 5,847,000 3,386,988 3,645,000 1,184,341
2019 - 2023 7,405,375 1,767,322 3,490,000 367,528
2024 - 2027 3,059,175 259,811
Total Principal
and Interest $ 23,511,222 $ 3,360,861 $ 21,385800 $ 9,985022 $ 10,115,000 % 3,404,157

1. Restricted Assets

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST), advanced capital lease proceeds and proceeds
from certificates of participation related to Education Reform Success, Inc., are reported as restricted
assets in the Statement of Net Assets because their use is limited by statutory provisions. Restricted
assets at June 30, 2008, were as follows:

General Fund Capital Projects Capital Projects
Capital Lease Capital Lease SPLOST
Proceeds Proceeds Proceeds ERS Inc.
Restricted Cash and Cash
Equivalents:
Capital Acquisitions  $ 1,515,161 $ 10,039,073 % 17,651,285
Restricted Investments:
Capital Acquisitions $ 137,951,906 § 183,999

46



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

J. Inter-fund Receivables and Payables

Inter-fund receivables and payables balances as of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Due from Due to
other funds other funds
Governmental Funds
General Fund $ 18,342,438
Capital Project Funds $ 26,020,503
Title I Fund 12,244,436
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 8,364,801
Proprietary Funds
Food Service Fund 3,798,430

$ 34,385,304 $ 34,385,304

During the course of its operations, the School System makes transfers between funds to finance
operations, provide services, and acquire assets. To the extent that certain transfers among funds had
not been received as of year end, balances of inter-fund amounts receivable or payable have been
recorded. It is management’s intent to repay inter-fund balances within the next fiscal year.

K. Inter-fund transfers

Transfers within the governmental and proprietary funds for the year ended June 30, 2008 are as
follows:

Transfers Transfers
In Qut
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 34,707,215
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 25,307,215
Proprietary Funds:
Food Service Fund 9,400,000

$ 34,707,215 § 34,707,215

Transfers are used to: (1) move local funds from the general fund to the food service fund in order to
cover the deficit fund balance maintained in the food service fund in prior years and (2) transfer state
revenues and allocable property taxes to the individual Charter Schools to fund their operations.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

L. Risk Management

The School System is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The School
System is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims and unemployment compensation claims.
The School System purchases commercial insurance in amounts deemed prudent by management for
all other risks of loss. Settled claims have not yet exceeded purchased commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three years.

Workers’ Compensation:

The School System is fully self-insured for workers' compensation claims of its employees. The
School System accounts for claims within the general fund with expenses/expenditures and liabilities
being reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred, and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. An accrued liability for the estimated costs of claims and related settlement
costs incurred but not paid and/or reported as of year-end is reported on the governmental activities
financial statements. The calculation of the present value of future workers’ compensation liabilities
is based on a discount rate of 3.5%. Changes in the claims liability during the last two fiscal years are
as follows:

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning Changes in Claim End of
of Year Estimates Payments Year
Fiscal Year 2007 $ 5,850,095 % 2,285256 § (2,672,606) $ 5,462,745
Fiscal Year 2008 $ 5462745 § 2,543,877 $ (2,597,149) $ 5,409,473

Unemployment Compensation:

The School System is self-insured with regard to unemployment compensation claims. The State
bills the system quarterly for the outstanding claims and the System pay the claims at that time.
Changes in the unemployment compensation claims liability during the last two fiscal years are as
follows:

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning Changes in Claim End of
of Year Estimates Payments Year
Fiscal Year 2007 $ 0% 400,532 $§  (400,532) $ 0
Fiscal Year 2008 $ 0 $ 251,797 $  (251,797) $ 0
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued
M. Nonmonetary Transactions
The School System received from the United States Department of Agriculture through the Georgia
Department of Education approximately $ 2,136,258 in donated food commodities for its lunchroom
programs. The federally assigned value of these commodities is reflected as revenue and expense in
the Food Services fund financial statements.
N. On-behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits
The School System has recognized revenues and expenditures in the amount of $7,454,278 for health
insurance and pension costs paid by the Georgia Department of Education to the Georgia
Department of Community Health for non-certified personnel on the School System’s behalf.

0. Retirement Plans

Teachers Retirement System of Georgia (TRS)

Plan Description

Substantially all teachers, administrative and clerical personnel employed by local school systems of
the State of Georgia are covered by the Teachers Retirement System of Georgia (TRS), which is a
cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system sponsored by the State of
Georgia. Most School Systems’ employees participate in TRS.

TRS provides service retirement, disability retirement and survivor's benefits for its members. A
member is eligible for service retirement after 30 years of creditable service, regardless of age, or
after 10 years of service and attainment of age 60. A member is eligible for early retirement after 25
years of creditable service. Early retirement benefits are reduced by the lesser of 1/12 of 7% of each
month the member is below age 60, or by 7% of each year or fraction thercof by which the member
has less than 30 years of service.

Normal retirement benefits paid to members are equal to 2% of the average of the member's two
consecutive highest paid years of service multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up
to 40 years. The normal retirement pension is payable monthly for life. Options are available for
distribution of the member's monthly pension at a reduced rate to a designated beneficiary on the
member's death.

Retirement benefits also include death and disability benefits whereby the disabled member or
surviving spouse is entitled to receive annually an amount equal to the member's service retirement
benefit or disability retirement, whichever is greater. The benefit is based on member's creditable
service (minimum of 10 years) and compensation up to the date of death.

TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information for the Plan. That report may be obtained by calling 404-352-6500, or by
accessing their website at www.trsga.com.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

O. Retirement Plans, continued

Funding Policy

Employees of the School System who are covered by TRS are required to pay 5% of their gross
earnings to TRS. The School System makes monthly employer contributions to TRS at rates
adopted by the TRS Board of Trustees as advised by their independent actuary. The employer
contribution rate is 9.28% at June 30, 2008.

Total actual and required contributions were as follows:

2008 2007 2006
School System $ 29,935,263 § 28,304,077 § 27,154,487
Employees 16,153,799 15,294,733 14,691,312
Total $ _46,089,062 § _43,598,810 § _41,845,799

City of Atlanta General Employees Pension Plan

Plan Description

All permanent employees of the School System who are not covered under the TRS are eligible to
participate in the City of Atlanta General Employees’ Pension Plan (the “Plan”). In addition, certain
School System employees employed prior to July 1, 1979, also participate in the Plan.

The Plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Plan is an agent multiple-employer pension plan
administered by a Board of Trustees, which includes the Mayor of the City of Atlanta or designee,
the City’s Chief Financial Officer, one member of City Council, one member of the School System,
one member elected by eligible employees of the City, one member elected by eligible employees of
the School System, one member elected by retired employees of the School System and one member
elected by retired employees of the City. The Board of Trustees has the authority to establish and
amend the benefit provisions of the Plan.

On December 12, 2005, the School System adopted the following changes to the Plan:

1. 10 year vesting
2. 2.5% benefit multiplier (capped at 80%)
3. Unreduced retirement at 30 years of service regardless of age

The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Plan. The report may be obtained by writing or by calling the Plan
at:

City of Atlanta General Employees Pension Plan

68 Mitchell Street

Atlanta, GA

Telephone Number: (404) 330-6000
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

O. Retirement Plans, continued

The Plan provides retirement benefits that, initially, are 2% of the employee's highest average
monthly base compensation over any 36-month period. A participant may retire at age 65 or, after 15
years of service, at age 60. Cost-of-living increases are awarded annually, up to a 3% maximum
increase. Partial vesting percentages based on years of creditable service and provisions for early
retirement, are included in the Plan. Benefits also may be payable at termination, death, or disability.

The School System’s membership in the Plan as of July 1, 2007 is as follows:

Active employees 1,026
Inactive members 154
Retirees and beneficiaries 2.479

Total membership 3,659

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value of Plan assets at July 1, 2007 was $161,816,360.

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The School System’s funding policy is to contribute a percentage of covered employee payroll as
developed in the actuarial valuation for the Plan. Obligations to contribute to the Plan are established
by the Board, subject to minimum financing standards established by the State of Georgia.

Active participants are required to contribute 7% of pay (8% if participant has a covered beneficiary
or is married). The School System’s contribution percentage is the actuarial determined amount
necessary to fund Plan benefits after consideration of employee contributions.

The actuarial determined contribution amount is the sum of the annual normal cost (determined
under the entry age normal actuarial cost method) and the amortization of the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability as a level percentage of future payrolls (over 40 years from January 1, 1979). The
most current valuation reflects a change in the plan year from January 1, through December 31 to
July 1, to June 30.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

0. Retirement Plans, continued

The Plan’s annual pension cost for the current year, based on actuarial valuations performed as of
July 1, 2007 and related information for the Plan is as follows:

Contribution rates as a percentage of covered payroll:

Employee 7% or 8%

Employer 8%
Annual pension cost $ 39,407,531
Employer contributions made $ 54,547,288
Actuarial valuation date 7/1/2007
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level % of payroll

Remaining amortization period 18.5 as of 7/1/2007

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases:

8% per year

Inflation 3% per year
Merit or seniority and productivity 4.5% per year
Post retirement benefit increase N/A

The asset valuation method used is the actuarial value from the prior year plus net new money plus
20% of the asset appreciation/depreciation for the current year and each of the prior four years.

The Net Pension Asset/Obligation was restated by $10,316,810 due to a recalculation.

The Plan’s annual pension cost for the last seven years are as follows:

Annual Annual Net Pension

Pension Pension Percentage Obligation
Year Cost Contribution Contributed (Asset)
2002 $ 36,094,349 $ 35,658,500 98.8% $ 435,849
2003 37,927,249 36,777,000 97.0% 1,586,098
2004 35,580,620 35,904,000 100.9% 1,262,718
2005 42,338,839 37,437,676 88.4% 6,163,881
2006 45,320,122 39,015,662 86.1% 12,468,341
2007* 47,113,734 49,265,265 104.6% 10,316,810
2008 39,407,531 54,567,288 138.5% (4,842,947)

* Plan year begin date changed from January 1 to July 1 as of July 2007. Thus amounts for 2007 and beyond are as of June 30",
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

0. Retirement Plans, continued

The Plan’s annual pension cost and pension asset at June 30, 2008 are as follows:
Calculation of Net Pension Asset

Annual required contribution $ 38,582,186

Interest on net pension asset 825,345
Adjustment to annual required contribution 0
Annual pension cost 39,407,531
Contributions made 54,567,288
Increase in net pension asset 15,159,757
Net pension obligation at beginning of year 10,316,810

Net pension asset at end of year $ 4,842,947

The Plan’s funding status based upon the most recent actuarial valuation is as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability Percentage
Actuarial Value (AAL) Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets Entry Age AAL/UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (o) ((b-a)/c)
1172002  $ 117,546,260 $ 563,396,789 $ 445,850,529 209% § 40,666,479 1096.4%
1/1/2003 109,367,500 579,890,481 470,522,981 18.9% 47,042,418 1000.2%
1/1/2004 107,323,985 581,451,634 474,127,649 18.5% 45,898,463 1033.0%
1/1/2005 102,301,954 580,470,790 478,168,836 17.6% 40,366,756 1184.6%
1/1/2006 116,866,067 600,055,443 483,189,376 19.5% 26,185,568 1845.3%
7/1/2007* 133,058,241 643,301,615 510,243,374 20.7% 29,105,414 1753.1%

* Plan year begin date changed from January 1 to July 1 as of July 2007. Thus amounts for 2007 and beyond are as of June 30",
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

P. Post Employment Benefits
Georgia Retiree Health Benefit Fund

Plan Description. The School District contributes to the Georgia Retiree Health Benefit Fund
(“GRHBF”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan
administered by the Department of Community Health. GRHBF provides health insurance benefits to
eligible retirees and their qualified beneficiaries. Pursuant to Title 45, Chapter 18 of the Official Code of
Georgia Annotated, the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plan is assigned to
the Board of Community Health. The Department of Community Health issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for GRHBF.
That report may be obtained from the Department of Community Health at 2 Peachtree Street, Atlanta,
Georgia 30303.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and participating employers are
established and may be amended by the Board of Community Health. Contributions of plan members or
beneficiaries receiving benefits vary based on plan election, dependent coverage, and Medicare eligibility
and election. On average, plan members pay approximately twenty-five percent (25%) of the cost of
health insurance coverage.

Participating employers are statutorily required to contribute in accordance with the employer
contribution rate established by the Board of Community Health. This contribution rate is established to
fund both the active and retired employee health insurance plans based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements. The employer contribution rates for the combined active and retiree plans for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Teachers 18.534% of state-based salaries
Non-Certificated Employees $162.72 per month

The School District’s contribution to the health insurance plans for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
was $ 34,489,793, which equaled the required contribution.

Q. Commitments and Contingencies

Construction commitments

The School System has active construction projects as of June 30, 2008. The projects relate to
construction and renovation of school buildings. At year end the School System’s commitments with
contractors were $40,574,386. State funding which is available but not yet recognized as revenues is
$1,131,052.

Litigation and Other Contingencies

The School System is a defendant in various lawsuits which arose in the ordinary course of its
activities. The School System believes its liability in these matters, if any, will not be material.

Amounts received or receivable principally from the Federal government are subject to audit and
review by grantor agencies. This could result in requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for
any costs which are disallowed under grant terms. The School District believes that such
disallowances, if any, will be immaterial to its overall financial position.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

R. Prior Period Adjustments

During fiscal year 2008, the School System made a variety of prior period adjustments due to various
errors or omissions, which require the restatement of the June 30, 2007, fund balance and net assets.
June 30, 2007, fund balance and net assets have been adjusted as follow:

Governmental Funds
Nonmajor
Governmental
General Fund Funds
Fund balance as previously reported $ 112,289,829 = § 14,604,481
Correction of prior year
receivables and revenues 1,323,176 844,489
Correction of prior year
payables and expenditures (18,000) (150,516)
Fund balance as restated $ 113,595,005 $ 15,298,454

* - The beginning fund balance for the General Fund includes the prior year ending Debt Service fund balance of $3,840,761.

District-wide Statements

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Net assets (deficit) as previously

reported $ 1,098,888,309 $ (3,952,966)
Correction of prior year

receivables and revenues 2,167,666 70,000
Correction of prior year

payables and expenses (168,516) (885,453)
Correction of inventories 104,781
Correction of capital assets, net

of accumulated depreciation 68,104,157 3,203,311
Correction of capital leases (46,527)
Correction of net pension asset (10,316,810)

&3
=]

Net assets (deficit) as restated 1,158,628,279 (1,460,327)
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, Continued

S. Other

Atlanta Educational Services (AES), a component unit of Atlanta Public Schools is a non-profit
corporation which the School System has a controlling interest in. The school system appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s board. The school system is in partnership with NITV (Network
for Instructional TV, Inc) to create and distribute technology based informational materials services
and instruction. The non-profit corporation provides these services primarily to students enrolled in
public and private accredited schools. AES financial information is not presented because it is not
material to the District’s financial statements.

T. Accounting Changes

The School system has changed the time period in which revenue is recognized. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the School System considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
NCGA Interpretation 3 paragraph 8, as amended, states that such time thereafter shall not exceed
60 days. No account balances have been adjusted. GASB Statement No. 33 states that
"Governments should recognize assets from imposed non-exchange revenue transactions in the
period when enforceable legal claim to the assets arises or when the resources are received,
whichever occurs first.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specific purposes.

The School System’s Special Revenue Funds have been established primarily on the basis of
program purpose and include the following funds and primary funding sources:

Title II Fund was established to account for federal grant funds passed through the Georgia
Department of Education, for the purpose of improving teacher quality and increasing the
number of highly quality teachers, para-professionals and principals.

Title VI-B Fund was established to account for federal grant funds passed through the Georgia
Department of Education, for the purpose of providing special education programs for children
in pre-kindergarten through the twelfth grade.

Lottery Fund was established to account for State of Georgia lottery funds passing through the
State of Georgia Department of Education for various programs as established by the State.

Other Federal Programs Fund was established to account for other federal funds for which
separate presentation is not considered necessary.

Other Special Projects Fund was established to account for other state and local funds for which
separate presentation is not considered necessary.

Charter Schools Fund was established to combine activities of charter schools operating within
the limits of the School System.

Capital Project Fund

Education Reform Success Fund was established to account for activities related to the

Education Reform Success, Inc., (a non-profit corporation) which was established by the School
System for the purpose of providing financing for some of the School System’s buildings and
equipment.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - TITLE IT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
REVENUES
State revenues $ 118,000 § 118,000 $ (118,000)
Federal revenues 4,680,232 4,680,232 § 7,464,205 2,783,973
Total Revenue 4,798,232 4,798,232 7,464,205 2,665,973
EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction 2,160,310 2,160,310 3,141,283 980,973
Support services
Pupil service 25,515 25,515 1,226,420 1,200,905
Improvement of instructional services 2,300,390 2,300,390 3,057,726 757,336
Central support 312,017 312,017 5,100 (306,917)
Community services 35,378 35,378
Total Expenditures 4,798,232 4,798,232 7,465 907 2,667,675
Net change in fund balances 0 o] (1,702) (1,702)
Fund Balance - beginning of year 0 1] 0 0
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 0 3 0 $ (1,702) $ (1,702)

See notes to the financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

REVENUES
State revenues
Federal revenues

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction

Support services;
Pupil services
Improvement of instructional services
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Maintenance and operation of facilitics
Student transportation
Central Support

Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

See notes to the financial statements.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - TITLE VI-B
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
233979 % 233979 § 325,109 § 91,130
9,011,769 9,011,769 9,230,250 218,481
9,245,748 9,245,748 9,555,359 309,611
2,646,335 2,584,335 4,235,101 1,650,766
5,472,116 5,534,116 2,906,782 (2,627,334)
102,363 102,363 1,294,286 1,191,923
266,473 266,473 54 (266,419)
8,279 8,279
138,962 138,962
476 476
758,461 758,461 913,492 155,031
57,927 57,927
9,245,748 9,245,748 9,555,359 309,611
0 0 0 0
0 0 Q 0
0 $ 0 5 0 $ 0
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REVNUES
State revenues

Total Revenue
EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Support services
Improvement of instructional services

Total Expenditures
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

See notes to the financial statements.

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LOTTERY GRANTS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over
Original Final Actual (Under)

$ 3110281 § 3,110,281 2,600,578 $ (509.703)
3,110,281 3,110,281 2,600,578 (509,703)
2,450,950 2,450,950 2,135,745 (315,205)
659,331 659,331 440,823 (218,508)
3,110,281 3,110,281 2,576,568 (533,713)
0 0 24,010 24,010

0 0 0 0
$ 0 3 0 24,010 $ 24,010
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REVENUES
Federal revenues
Other

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction

Support services:
Pupil services
Improvement of instructional services
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Maintenance and operation of facilities
Student transportation
Central support

Community services

Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over

Original Final Actual (Under)
$ 6,460,887 $ 5,147,922 % 4374232 § (773.690)
190,036 3,562 (3,562)
6,650,923 5,151,484 4,374,232 (777,252)
3,996,502 2,569,002 1,754,143 (814,859)
325,302 308,675 697,013 388,338
1,896,613 1,589,089 1,520,670 (68.419)
175,237 121,641 27,656 (93.985)
1,419 1,419
36,872 36,872
5313 5313 20,826 15513
116,880 116,704 26,257 (90.447)
99.022 408,532 173,143 (235,389)
36,054 32,528 108,965 76,437
6,650,923 5,151,484 4,366,964 (784,520)
0 0 7,268 7,268

0 0 0 0
$ 0 0 $ 7,268 § 7,268
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OTHER SPECIAL PROJECTS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over
Qriginal Final Actual (Under)
REVENUES
State revenues $ 258,286 3 3,754,348 § 3,754,348
Federal revenues 263,511 263,511
Other 18,095,177 § 16,752,788 7,385,172 (9,367,616)
Total Revenue 18,353,463 16,752,788 11,403,031 (5,349,757)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 3,725,017 4,458,958 3,765,948 (693,010)
Support services:
Pupil services 8918 258,198 249,280
Improvement of instructional services 3,167,061 2,468,960 3,211,518 742,558
Educational media 2,707,118 2,032,284 826,764 (1,205,520)
General administration 1,461,006 3,095,660 763,738 (2,331,922)
School administration 1,010,810 1,011,801 286,354 (725,447)
Business services 2,033,789 10,000 73,722 63,722
Maintenance and operation of facilities 57,981 55,225 333,089 277,864
Student transportation 745,091 15,950 15,950
Central support 2,025 900 584 (316)
Community services 167,592 167,592
Other Operations - Non-instructional Services 4,822,934 4,789,717 (4,789,717)
Capital Qutlay 201,709 71,559 48,376 (23,183)
Debt Service:
Principal 366,557 379,777 412215 32,438
Interest 52,365 42,402 (42,402)
Total Expenditures 20,353,463 18,426,161 10,164,048 (8,262,113)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,000,000) (1,673,373) 1,238,983 2,912,356
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Qperating transfers in 2,000,000 2,000,000 (2.000.000)
Net change in fund balances 0 326,627 1,238,983 912,356
Fund Balance - beginning of year, as previously stated 9,403,144 9,403,144 9,403,144 0
Prior period adjustments (See Note R) 844,489 844,489
Fund Balance - beginning of year, as restated 9,403,144 9,403,144 10,247,633 844,489
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 9,403,144 § 9,729,771 § 11,486,616 §$ 1,756,845

See notes to the financial statements.
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ADDITIONAL FINANCTAL INFORMATION



QUALITY BASIC EDUCATION

PROGRAMS - PROGRAM EXPENDITURES

The Official Code of Georgia Annotated Section 20-2-172 (a) Expenditure Controls for fiscal years 2007 and 2008 state;

For each program identified in Code Section 20-2-161, each local school system shall spend 100 percent of funds
designated for direct instructional costs on the direct instructional costs of such program on one or more of the
programs identified in Code Section 20-2-161 at the system level, with no requirement that the school system

spend any specific portion of such funds at the site where such funds were earned.

The following page is presented for purposes of additional analysis and reflect overall minimum expenditure
requirements compared to overall program expenditures made by the School System as described above and also
reflect minimum program expenditure requirements compared to actual expenditures made by the School

System on a program basis.
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DESCRIPTION

Direct Instructional Programs
Kindergarten Program
Kindergarten Program-Early [ntervention Program
Primary Grades (1-3) Program
Primary Grades-Early Intervention (1-3) Program
Upper Elementary Grades (4-5) Program
Upper Elem Grades-Early Intervention (4-5) Program
Middle Grades (6-8) Program
Middle School (6-8) Program
High School General Education (9-12) Program
Vocational Laboratory (9-12) Program
Students with Disabilities
Category [
Category 1l
Category III
Category 1V
Category V
Gifted Student - Category VI
Remedial Education Program
Alternative Education Program
English Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL)

TOTAL DIRECT INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS

Media Center Program
Staff and Professional Development

TOTAL QBE FORMULA FUNDS

ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF ALLOTMENTS AND EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM
GENERAL FUND QUALITY BASIC EDUCATION PROGRAM (QBE)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
ALLOTMENTS
FROM GEORGIA
DEPARTMENT OF ELIGIBLE QBE PROGRAM COSTS
EDUCATION (1) (2) SALARIES OPERATIONS TOTAL

3 17,144,333 § 19,323,207 § 11,755 § 19,334,902
6,594,707 5,902,493 5,902,493
42,840,888 59,418,247 2,102,937 61,521,184
12,141,125 26,356,144 26,356,144
17,592,146 19,816,915 2,941,374 22,758,289
8,168,696 10,094,193 10,094,193

2,030,907
28,867,022 42,117,407 2,182,485 44,299,892
26,024,719 50,894,138 6,252,281 57,146,419
7,512,492 8,214,469 598,011 8.812480
2,923,638 37,599,322 2,218,653 39,817.975
4,190,465 2,327,274 2,327.274
14,564,478 3,426,391 763,101 4,189.492
2,248,595 5,119 5,119
388,636 38,355 38.355
7,745,388 8,679,947 21,788 8,701,735
2,405,491 1,842,674 1,193,078 3,035,752
2,395,253 1,383,420 987,236 2,370,656
2,549,623 3,906,272 128,449 4,034,721
$ 208,328,602 § 301,345,987 § 19,401,148 § 320,747,135
6,006,909 8,452,652 869,676 9,322,328
1,137,920 1,126,348 805,325 1,931,673
3 215,473,431 § 310924987 21,076,149 § 332,001,136

(1) Comprised of State Funds plus Local Five Mill Share.

(2) Allotments do not include the impact of the State amended formula adjustment,

See notes to the financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Lottery Programs
Schedule of Expenditures by Object
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(with comparative totals for 2007)

Pre-Kindergarten Program

2008 2007
Salaries $ 2,164,139 § 2,119,801
Employee Benefits 352,147 332,808
Employee travel 12,224
Other purchased services 9,169
Materials and supplies 48,058 30,616

b 2,576,568 $§ 2,492,394
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Approved Local Option Sales Tax Projects
Year Ended June 30, 2008

AMOUNT AMOUNT
ORIGINAL CURRENT EXPENDED EXPENDED

ESTIMATED ESTIMATED IN CURRENT IN PRIOR

PROJECT COST (1) COSTS (2) YEAR (3) YEARS (4)

PROJECT
STATUS

SPLOST 11

Dekalb County
Renovations, modifications, additions and

equipment for the following facilities: Crim

High School, Coan Middle School,

Burgess/Peterson Elementary School, East Lake

Elementary School, Lin Elementary School,

Toomer Elementary School, and Whitefoord

Elementary School; and acquisition and

installation of information systems, hardware

and infrastructure at the above schools and

related facilities 21,355,321 26,041,605 7,371,231 18,670,374

Fulton County

New school construction, classroom additions,

renovations, infrastructure improvements,

security system improvements, technology

improvements, tand acquisition, site

preparation, new staft develop and

instructional support facilities, new

maintenance facility, new stadium, new school

buses, and new support vehicles 486,538,295 426,839,322 28,283,156 372,786,244

SPLOSTIII

Dekalb County

Capital outlay projects consisting of

consiruction, renovations, medifications,

additions and equipment for the following

tacilities: The Howard School, Lin Elementary

School and Whitefoord Elementary School and

any future updates: Crim High School, Coan

Middle School, Burgess/Peterson Elementary

School, Fast Lake Elementary School and

Toomer Elementary 20,511,000 20,511,000 110,067

Fulton County

Capital outlay projects including new school

construction, classroom additions, renovations,

infrastructure improvements, upgrading security

system, technology improvements, land

acquisition, site preparation, providing staff

development and instructional suppon facilities

and providing athletics fields and play fields

improvements 552,357,776 552,357,776 10,770.016

$ 1,080,762,392 § 1,025,749,703 § 46,534470 § 391,456,618

(1) The School District's original cost estimate as specified in the resolution ealling for the imposition of the Local Option
Sales Tax. ,

(2) The School District's cuttent estimate of total cost for the projects. Includes all cost from project inception to completion.

(3) The voters of Fulton and Dekalb Counties approved the imposition of a 1% sales tax to fund the above prajects and retire
associated debt. Amounts expended for these projects may include sales tax proceeds, state, local property

taxes and/or other funds over the life of the projects.

(4) The School District's amounls expended in prior years related to the above projects.

See notes to the financial statements.
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM

AGENCY/FUNDING

GRANTS
Bright from the Start:
Georgia Department of Early Care and Leaming
Pre-Kindergarien Program

Edycation, Georgia Department of
Quality Basic Education
Direct Instructional Cost
Kindergarten Program
Kindergarten Program - Early Intervention Program
Primary Grades (1-3) Program
Primary Grades - Early Intervention (1-3) Program
Upper Elementary Grades (4-5) Program
Upper Elementary Grades - Early Intervention {4-5) Program
Middle Grades (6-8) Program
Middle School (6-8) Program
High School General Education (9-12) Propram
Vocational Laboratory (9-12) Program
Students with Disabilities - All Categories
Gifted Student - Category V1
Remedial Education Propram
Alternative Education Program
English Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL)
Media Center Program
20 Days Additional Insiruction
Staff and Professional Development
Indirect Cost
Central Adminisiration
School Administration
Facility Maintenance and Operations
Categorical Grants
Pupil Transportation
Repular
Bus Replacement
Nursing Services
Mid-term Adjustment Hold-Harmless
Food Services
Austerity Reduction
Other State Programs
Career, Technical and Agriculture
Charter Schools- Direct
Charter Schools- APS
Health Insurance
High School Graduation Coach
Middle School Graduation Coach
Middle School Math Remediation and Intervention Grant
National Teacher Centification
Preschool Handicapped Program
Residential Treatment Centers Grani
Teacher's Retirement
Virtual School State Grants

Georgia State Financing and Investment Commission
Reimbursement an Construction Projects

Technical and Adult Education, Georgia Depariment of
Aduli Education

See notes 10 the financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF STATE REVENUE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
CAPITAL OTHER BUSINESS
GENERAL PROJECTS GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
FUND FUND FUNDS ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$ 2,600,578 $ 2,600,578
H 9,428,821 9828 821
3,804,627 3.804,627
24,888,397 24,888,397
6,937,443 6.937.443
10,245,001 10.245.001
4,594,752 4.594.752
1,111,149 1111.149
16,669,296 16.669.296
15,017 487 15.017.487
4363319 4.363.319
13,960,600 13,960,600
4,441,301 4,441,300
1,403,721 1.403.721
1,380,759 1.380.759
1,468,977 1.468 977
2,688,000 2.688.000
1,839,259 1839259
652.835 652.835
2,774,585 2.774.585
8,127,443 8.127.443
8,383,445 #.343.445
3,454,540 3,454,540
653,047 653,047
14,710 K14.710
2,248,955 2,248,955
1,130,056 1,130,056
4,314,689 4,314,689
354,634 354,634
480,005 480,005
330,000 330,000
7,296,498 7.296.498
672,088 672088
778,721 778,721
52,031 52.031
339,584 339,554
325,109 325109
712,482 712.4K2
157,780 157780
2.294 2.294
5 2,207,605 2.207.605
512,514 512514
5 154,892,058 § 2,207,605 § 7,160,040 1130056 % 165,389,759
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHQOL SYSTEM

Expenses

Govemmental Activilies
Inatruction
Pupil Services
Instructional Suppor
Educationsl Media Services
General Administralion
School Administration
Business Adminitralion
Mainlenancas and Operations.
Puph Tranxportation
Support Servicas-Central
Community Seivices
Support Sarvices-Othar
Enterprise Cperations
Intarest
Depreclation

Total Governmental Activitios Exoensas

Business-Tyne Aslivities.
Food Sarvices.
Totsl Businedn-Type Activites Expenses

Total Primary Government Activities Expenses

Program Reyanuss
Gavotnmental Activiies
Charges for Servicos
Instruction
Maintenance and Oparations
Enterpriaa Operations
Operaling Grants #nd Contributions.
Instruction
Pupll Saivicat
instructional Support
Educationa) Madia Services
General Administration
School Administration
Businass Adminiciration
Muirtenance and Operalions
Pupil Transportstion
Supporl Services-Central
Community Services
Other Sypporl Sorvices
Caglia) Grants and Conlribulions
Instruction
Pupll Services
Inatructional Support
Educalional Media Services
Scheol Adminisiration
Mainlenance and Operationa
Pupil Tranepertaticn
Othar Support Seryices.
Tatal Governmental Activites Program Revenues

Butinee-Type Activities
Charges for Services
Food Services
Operaling Grants and Contributions
Food Services.
Tolal Business-Type Activilies Program Revenues
Food Servicos.

Total Primary Governmant Activities Program Revanues

Net (Expanse)/Revanue

Bovernmental Activities
Instruction
Pupil Servicas
Instructional Support
Educational Media Services
General Adminlsiretion
School Adminisiratien
Business Administration
Maintenance and Coerations
Pupil Transpartation
Support Sarvices-Central
Community Services
Othar Support Services
Enterrize Operations.
Imarest

Total Acliviies Nl

Business-Tvpe Acliviies
orvices
Total Buminess-Type Activities

Tatal Primary Government Activities Net Expense

Ganatal Revenues and Olhar Charges in Net Ansets
Governments! Actvities
Taxen
Proerty Taxes Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes Levied for Dabt Seivicos
Sales Tax
Other Taxes

Foderat and Othar State Akl not Restricted to Specific Proarams

Interes! and Investmant Earninas
Local School Astivity
Migcalianeous
Loss on Sale of Assets
TFransfera
Soecial Hens (See Nole P)
Proceads trom sale of assets
Extra ordinary ltems
Total Govermnmental Activities
Businasa-Type Activites
Interest and Investment Earnings.
Migcelanecus
Transters
Loss on Sale of Assets
Total Business-Tvis Activitiex

Total Primary Governmem Activitiea

Chanpe in Nel Asasls
Governantal Activiie
Business-Tvpe Activities
Tatal Primary Government

Source: Atlants Board of Education Financial Reports.
for previous years and fiscal vear anded Juna 30, 2008

Change In Net Aszety

Last Five Fiscat Years

Fiacal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
424,091,453 435,352,357 389,455,378 425,383,084 410,454,533
21,890,649 24.009.140 28,260,061 23.840.338 33,754,628
21,135,004 20.011.373 29,956,194 31.474575 39,133 885
5,746,670 7.087.158 12,625.248 8.112,722 10,558,856
21.536.082 18,508,200 25,647,833 24,245,855 17,184,335
24 230,B00 23,247,406 36,318,561 28.180.287 31,320,750
5.482.136 6,685,755 12,977,848 15.840.937 23,237,588
61,354,665 48,321,264 €0.113.313 60,209,758 85 855059
15,185,562 14678.214 22565137 18.836,530 38,178.913
20,125 882 26.204,018 28,388,085 27.906.578 28,102,643
73,808 £33.485
423301 1.257 841 3.029,506 2,148,555
603,689
680,336 538613 1882128 1.575.589
204,580
631,685 926 625,465,819 848,335,429 724.250.779
(632.212.611) —_—
26,552,371 25,772,181 21711548 21,827,175
26,552,371 25772181 21.711.548 21,627,175
655,238,298 651,219,000 870,046,977 630,748 908 747 367 564
- - 1071582 1,004 517 114,350
- - 1,025,542 1.067.404 -
586.080
187,402,434 170.977.158 147,828,677 156 075,020 167.906.705
8,558,788 8,414,003 4,455,337 14,951,701 18,133.132
17,556,483 18,447,378 4.860,311 16,073,230 16110507
30,854 182,848 4.395,685 2424655 3,745.884
3.758.784 4.151.612 1,950,485 3336077 3,104,288
381,845 238,704 11,185,821 6.065.020 3.488.051
- 356225 1.672,864 1.102.418 9.106.449
58,067 27,511 15641179 8.740.838 9.262.487
379673 1409.015 5.601,018 5.208.251 5.337.639
784,227 1105539 5754235 984,451 860,428
- - - 65.551 226.806
2.524.240 1444714 163,622 7.385,780 1,307,102
2,717,420 2.230.799 - 1.633,628
176,608
154,532
44152
132.456
1.191.830
653,047
66,228
222.121.795 208.895 305 225,654,541 241,961,551
1,966,090 3.566.337 2.580.827 2534.748 2.187.375
20.250.537 18.068.138 18.265.691 18,996,732 20877.018
22,216,627 21,654.476 20,8485 21533.478 084,394
J44 358,427 228,843 781 228,222,820 247 386013 265,025,945
(233,971 Spd (262,144,400) (240,555,120 1268,303.547} (240.799,848}
{15.331,881) {15.565.,137) 124,794,744} (8.688.837) {15 445,188)
(3573541) (3.563.984) 124.995.883) (15.401.345) (22.866,566)
{6.715.916) (6.904.512) {8.129.284) (6.688.087) (6.76€ B20)
(17.762.298) (14,758.588) (23 B88.348) 120.909.778) (14.080,047)
{23 B48.955) (23.008,702) (25122,840) (22.095.267) {27.696 343)
(5,482,136} 6,319,530} (11 304,982} (14.747.521) (141311200
(61.295.658) (48.283,773) (43 446,582} (50.401 516) (76.992.572)
{14.805.909) 13,269,199) (15.343,475) (12,438 ,648) (32.186.227)
(28,375.655) (25.088,479) {20 631.831) (26.922127) (28.442.414)
(8.257) (706.679)
2.524,240 1.021.413 (1.004.019) 4,340,184 776.225)
. - - - (217.608)
(650,836) {538,613} 1.852,128) 1,189.862) 11,575.569)
(204, 868] - SN SN —
409,564,133 {418,471,514) 440,958.027) {443.484.185) (482,269 228)
4,335,744 14,117,706 18€5.030) (93,897) (42,391)
(4,335 744] (4,117.705) (885.030) {83.697) (42,391)
_A3ENETT)  _{433588279) @iz (43 87 ,505) [E7331,818)
373,487,358 7TNEI0N 363,973,482 438,802.648 470,036,120
- - 1.979.560 1.036.250 1,153,847
B5.604.048 91202.366 101,224,661 121,568,835 115.735.907

- . 14,729,136 - -

- - 9.411.373 1347240
1,895,307 4,858,043 7.314.985 14,015,739
3.785,200 5.900.535 6,073,779 15,120,339 10.363.939

- - 2,746.146 3,128,377

(1,592,485} 1,796.202) (1,036,966} {16.416.074) (9.400.000}
. - (1,881,811} .
463,251,416 477,160,353 506,416,146 572,663,913
59,712 70.445
1562435 1.786.282 1.036.966 16,416.074 9.400,000
485 7.796387 96678 164ESg84 400,050
am4arIvol_ 478 876 645 T T 989,169,897 £12,662.793
53.717.283 58,708,839 65457 119 128,219,724 120,963,585
(2,743.259) (2321413)  __ 231Bd6 16,382,287 9,357,608
30,974,024 56,397 426 _e5e88.787_ 145,612,011 052174
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ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND NINE YEARS AGO

2008
Percentage of Total
Taxable Assessed City Taxable
Tax Payer Type of Business Value Rank Assassed Value ,

Bell South Communication Service $ 244,693,204 1 0.83%
Georgia Power Company Utility Service $ 197,766,434 2 0.67%
Development Authority of Fulton County Economic Development $ 181,620,042 3 0.62%
Coca-Cola Company Marketing and Manufacturing $ 172,011,442 4 0.59%
Post Apartment Homes Residential Real Estate $ 154,997,343 5 0.53%
BF ATL, LLC $ 135,349,359 6 0.46%
Sun Trust Plaza Association Commercial Real Estate $ 115,924,129 7 0.39%
Georgia Pacific Company Pulp and Paper Manufacturing $ 104,165,251 8 0.35%
Georgia Promenade, LLC $ 84,941,760 9 0.29%
Hines Cne Atlantic Center, LP Investment 3 83,995,120 10 0.29%

3 1,475,464,084 2.99%

1999
Percentage of Total
Taxable Assessed City Taxable
Tax Payer Type of Business Value Rank Assessed Value

Bell South Communication Service 312,435,314 1 2.42%
Coca-Cola Company Marketing and Manufacturing 155,802,140 2 1.21%
Georgia Power Company Utility Service 152,322,369 3 1.18%
ATET Communication Service 135,061,777 4 1.05%
Georgia Pacific Company Pulp and Paper Manufacturing 81,202,870 5 0.63%
CSC Associates Commercial Real Estate 79,010,070 6 0.61%
One Ninety One Peachtree Association Commercial Real Estate 76,178,120 7 0.59%
Sprint Communication Service 33,365,121 8 0.26%
Norfolk Southern Commercial Real Estate/Hospitality 29,011,609 9 0.22%
MCI Telecom Communication Service 27,328,391 10 0.21%
Total 1,081,717,781 8.38%

Notes; 1.- Total City taxable assessed value for 2008 is based on preliminary data from Fulton County
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS



ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

The auditor is required to communicate to management and those charged with governance control
deficiencies identified during the course of the financial statement audit that, in the auditor's
judgment, constitute significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affect the Atlanta Independent School System's ability to initiate,
authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
Atlanta Independent School System's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not
be prevented or detected by the Atlanta Independent School System's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will
not be prevented or detected by the Atlanta Independent School System's internal control.

Any identified deficiencies in internal controls that we did not consider to be significant deficiencies
and/or material weaknesses have been communicated to management and those charged with
governance within a separate management letter dated October 8, 2009. The internal control
deficiency identified during the course of this engagement that is considered to be a material
weakness is presented below:

EXPENDITURES/LIABILITIES/DISBURSEMENTS
CAPITAL ASSETS
Failure to Properly Account for Construction Project Activity

Material Weakness
Finding Control Number: FS-7611-08-01

Condition: The School District did not properly account for expenditure, liability and
capital assets activity related to major construction projects.

Criteria: Chapter 10 Expenditure and Disbursement Accounting of the Financial
Management for Georgia Local Units of Administration states that
expenditures related to construction projects should be recognized when
incurred.

Chapter 37 Fixed Assets of the Financial Management for Georgia Local
Units of Administration provides that School Districts must establish fixed
asset policies, define system requirements, implement a fixed asset system
and maintain fixed asset inventory records.

-89 .



ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXPENDITURES/LIABILITIES/DISBURSEMENTS
CAPITAL ASSETS

Failure to Properly Account for Construction Project Activity
Material Weakness

Finding Control Number: FS-7611-08-01

Questioned Cost: N/A

Information: A review of subsequent period invoices related to major construction projects
revealed expenditure/expense activity that had occurred during fiscal year
2008 but had not been properly accrued as of June 30, 2008. Adjusting
entries were made to properly reflect this activity on the financial statements.

A review of construction contracts revealed projects that were not properly
capitalized in accordance with the School District's capitalization policy.
Additionally, a review of projects capitalized as construction in progress
revealed construction projects that were completed as of June 30, 2008, but,
had not been properly transferred to buildings or building improvements.
Adjusting entries were made to properly reflect this activity on the financial
statements.

Cause: Adequate accounting procedures were not in place to properly account for
activity related to major construction projects.

Effect: Expenditures and accrued liabilities for the Capital Projects Fund were
understated. Accrued liabilities and capital assets for governmental activities
were understated.

Recommendation:  The School District should establish accounting procedures to ensure that
activity related to major construction projects are adequately reviewed and
properly reflected in the financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
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We concur with this finding. During fiscal year 2009, the Atlanta Board of Education enacted new
capital assets regulations related to capitalization thresholds. Management has also strengthened
internal controls over capital assets and related liabilities to ensure proper reporting of such
transactions. Further, management has engaged an outside vendor to confirm proper reporting of
balances.

Contact Person: Nader Sohrab, Executive Director, Accounting/Controller

Telephone: (404) 802-2416
Fax: (404) 802-1403
Email: nsohrab@atlanta.k12.ga.us
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